
Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

12051 Corporate Boulevard, Ortando, FL 32817; 407-723-5900 

vwwv. hollyhillroadeastcdd. com 

The following is the proposed agenda for the meeting of the Board of Supervisors for the Holly Hill 
Road East Community De\€lopment District, scheduled to be held Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 
10:00 a.m. via conference call due to the Executive Order 20-112 extending COVID-19 Executive 
Order 20-69. Attached to this Agenda is a copy of the Executi\€ Order 20-69. Questions or comments 
on the Board Meeting or proposed agenda may be addressed to Jane Gaarlandt at 
gaarlandtj@pfm.com or (407) 723-5900. The attendance of three Board Members is required to 
constitute a quorum. 

To attend the meeting, please use the below conference call information: 

Call-in Number: 1-844-621-3956 Access Code: 790 393 986 # 

PROPOSED BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING AGENDA 

Administrative Matters 
• Roll Call to Confirm Quorum 
• Public Comment Period [for any members of the public desiring to speak on any proposition 

before the Board] 

1. Consideration of the Minutes of the March 18, 2020 Board of Supervisors' Meetings 
2. Consideration of Letter from Supervisor of Election Regarding Qualified Electors 

Business Matters 
3. Consideration of Financing Matters Relative to Phase 3 & 4 Projects, Series 2020 Bonds 

A. Presentation of Supplemental Assessment Report 
B. Resolution 2020-10, Amending Resolution 2020-05, Delegation Resolution 

(provided under separate cover) 
o Third Supplemental Trust Indenture 
o Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture 
o Preliminary Offering Memorandum 

C. Presentation of Supplemental Assessment Report, Bond Anticipation Note, 
Series 2018 

D. Resolution 2020-11, Amending Resolution 2019-01 Authorizing Not to Exceed 
$550,000 Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2018 (Amenity Center Line of Credit) 

E. US Bank Trustee Fee Proposal 
F. Other Matters (provided under separate cover) 

4. Consideration of Resolution 2020-12, Approving a Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 and Setting a Public Hearing Date Thereon [suggested date: July 22, 2020] 

5. Consideration of Proposals for Dissemination Services 
• PFM 
• GMS 

6. Consideration of Proposal(s) for Playground Shade Structure 
7. Consideration of Proposal(s) for Dog Park (provided under separate cover) 
8. Consideration of Proposal for Speed Limit Signs (provided under separate cover) 

pfm 

http://www.hollyhillroadeastcdd.com/
http://www.hollyhillroadeastcdd.com/


9. Consideration of Proposals for Towing Services (provided under separate cover) 
10. Discussion Regarding Re-Opening of Amenity Facilities 
11. Ratification of Payment Authorization Nos. 114 -
12. Review of Monthly Financials 

Other Business 
Staff Reports 

District Counsel 
Interim Engineer 
District Manager 

Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments 
Adjournment 

pfm 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 

EXECUTIVE ORDER NUMBER 20-69 
(Emergency Management- COVID-19 - Local Government Public Meetings) 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, I issued Executive Order 20-51 directing the Florida 

Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency as a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer 

declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, I issued Executive Order 20-52 declaring a state of 

emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention ("CDC") issued the "15 Days to Slow the Spread" guidance advising 

individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, such as working from home and 

avoiding gatherings of more than 10 people; and 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, I wrote a letter to Attorney General Ashley Moody 

seeking an advisory opinion regarding concerns raised by local government bodies about their 

ability to hold meetings through teleconferencing and other technological means in order to protect 

the public and follow the CDC guidance regarding social distancing; and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, Attorney General Ashley Moody delivered an opinion 

to me indicating that certain provisions of Florida law require a physical quorum be present for 

local government bodies to conduct official business, and that local government bodies may only 

conduct meetings by teleconferencing or other technological means if either a statute permits a 

quorum to be present by means other than in person, or that the in person requirement for 

constituting a quorum is lawfully suspended during the state of emergency; and 



WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate to take action to ensure that COVID-19 

remains controlled, and that residents and visitors in Florida remain safe and secure; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, RON DESANTIS, as Governor of Florida, by virtue of the 

authority vested in me by �rticle IV, Section (l)(a) of the Florida Constitution, Chapter 252, 

Florida Statutes, and all other applicable laws, promulgate the following Executive Order to take 

immediate effect: 

Section 1. I hereby suspend any Florida Statute that requires a quorum to be present in 

person or requires a local government body to meet at a specific public place. 

Section 2. Local government bodies may utilize communications media technology, 

such as telephonic and video conferencing, as provided in section 120.54(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes. 

Section 3. This Executive Order does not waive any other requirement under the 

Florida Constitution and "Florida's Government in the Sunshine Laws," including Chapter 286, 

Florida Statutes. 

Section 4. This Executive Order shall expire at the expiration of Executive Order 20-

52, including any extension. 

ATTEST: 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of Florida to be affixed, at Tallahassee, this 
20th da T of March, 20 

D 

c=::> 
,......, 

:!!& 
);::ii, 
A) 

N 

0 

> � .u ...u:I\: 
i _ _  . 

w 

co 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Minutes 



MINUTES OF MEETING 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY D EVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETIeNG 
Wednesday, March 18, 2020 at 10:06 a.m. 
Holida y Inn Winter Garden, 
200 Cypress Gardens Blvd., 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

Board Members present at roll call: 

Rennie Heath Chair 

Scott Shapiro Vice Chair (via phone) 

Lauren Schwenk Assistant Secretary 

Patrick Marone Assistant Secretary 

Also Present: 

Jane Gaarlandt PFM Group Consulting, LLC 

Christina Hanna PFM Group Consulting, LLC (via phone) 

Dexter Glasgow PFM Group Consulting, LLC (via phone) 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order approximately at 10:06 a.m. Those in attendance are outlined 

above. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period 

There were no members of the public present. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of the 

February 19, 2020 Board of 

Supervisors' Meeting 

The Board reviewed the Minutes of the February 19, 2020 Board of Supervisors' Meeting. 

On MOTION by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in fa\Or, the Board approved the Minutes 

of the February 19, 2020 Board of Supervisors' Meeting. 

Page 1 of4 



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Financing Matters 

Relative to Phase 3 & 4 Projec1s, 

Series 2020 Bonds 

a) Presentation of Supplemen1al 

Assessment Report 

b) Resolution 2020-07, Supplemen1al 

Assessment Resolution 

c) Greenberg Traurig Engagement 

Letter 

d) Other Matters 

Ms. Gaarlandt noted the Supplemental Assessment Report and Resolution 2020-07 will be tabled 

until the next meeting. 

The Board reviewed the Greenberg Traurig Engagement Letter. 

On MO11ON by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in fa\Or, the Board approved the 

Greenberg Traurig Engagement Letter. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public hearing on the Adoption of 

Rules Relating to Overnight Parking 

and Traffic Enforcement 

a) Public Comments and Testimony 

b) Board Comments 

c) Consideration of 2020-09, 

Adopting Rules Relating 1D 

Overnight Parking and Traffic 

Enforcement 

Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to open the public hearing. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in fa\Or, the Board opened the Public 

Hearing. 

Ms. Gaarlandt noted for the record that no members of the public were present and requested a 
motion to close the public hearing. 

Page 2 of4 



On MOTION by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in fa\Or, the Board closed the Public 

Hearing. 

Individuals can apply for an o\iemight parking permit not to exceed se\ien days. Street parking vvill 
be permitted on the odd side of the road. Mr. Wood is working on a map that will outline the 
permitted parking. It will be posted with the policies on the website. 

On MO11ON by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Marone, with all in fa\Or, the Board appro\ied Resolution 

2020-09, Adopting Rules Relating to O\iemight Parking and Traffic Enforcement. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Payment Authorization 

Nos. 110 - 113 

The Board reviewed payment authorizations numbers 110 - 113. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in fa\Or, the Board ratified Payment 

Authorization Nos. 110-113. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Monthly Financials 

The Board reviewed the monthly financials through February 29, 2020. There was no action 

required by the Board. 

Ms. Gaarlandt noted the budget discussion will start during the April and May meetings. 

Ms. Schwenk asked if the Board did the Delegation Hearing. Ms. Gaarlandt stated the District 

adopted the Delegation Resolution and the only thing still needed is consideration and adoption of 

the Supplemental Assessment Resolution with the final numbers. Ms. Schwenk stated the District 

is in a holding pattern but may be able to do something late next month. Ms. Gaarlandt noted the 

next meeting is scheduled for April 15, 2020 and there is talk about April 17, 2020 for the actual 

closing. The District can continue the meeting on April 15, 2020. The District might see some 

delays. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

Page 3 of4 



District Counsel - Not present 

District Engineer- Not Present 

District Managere- Ms. Gaarlandt noted the District Amenity center was temporarily closed 

due to the Coronavirus government orders. Cleaning staff is still working 

to keep the facilities in good condition. 

Mr. Glasgow indicated he was onsite and the homeowners he met were 

understanding of the situation. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience 

Comments 

There were no Supervisor requests. There were no members of the audience present. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

There were no other questions or comments. Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to adjourn. 

ON M0110N by Mr. Marone, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in fa\Or, the March 18, 2020 Board 

of Supervisors' Meeting for the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District was 

adjourned. 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 

Page 4 of4 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Letter from Supervisor of Election 



SUPERVISOR OF 

ELECTIONS 
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Lori Edwards 

April 16, 2020 

Christina Hanna - Asst DM 
Fishkind & Associates - PFM 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, Florida 32817-1450 

RE: Holly Hill Road Community Development District Registered Voters 

Dear Ms. Hanna, 

In response to your request, there are currently 91 voters within the Holly Hill 
Road Community Development District. This number of registered voters in said 
District is as of April 15, 2020. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if we can be of further assistance. 

Sincerely, 

Lori Edwards 

Supervisor of Elections 
Polk County, Florida 

P.O. Box 1460, Bartow, FL 33831 • PHONE: (863) 534-5888 

PolkElections.com 

Para asistencia en Espanol, por favor de llamar al (863) 534-5888 

https://PolkElections.com


Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Financing Matters 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Supplemental Assessment Report 



0 
pfm 

SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

METHODOLOGY REPORT, 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and 

ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

May 2020 

Prepared for: 

Members of the Board of Supervisors, 
Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Prepared on May 13, 2020 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 



0 

SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT, 
SERIES 2020 BONDS (ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4) 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

May 13, 2020 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4, dated 

May 13, 2020 ("Supplemental Methodology") provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem 

special assessments securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be issued by the Holly Hill Road 

East Community Development District ("District") to fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements 

and facilities. This Supplemental Methodology operates pursuant to the District's "Third Amended & 

Restated Master Assessment Methodology Report" dated January 31, 2019 ("Third Master 

Methodology"), which effectively amended and restated the District's "Second Amended & Restated 

Master Assessment Methodology Report" dated December 19, 2018 ("Second Master Methodology"), 

which effectively amended and restated the District's "Amended & Restated Master Assessment 

Methodology Report" dated March 21, 2018 ("Master Methodology"), which effectively amended and 

restated the District's "Master Assessment Methodology Report," dated September 20, 2017 ("Original 

Master Methodology") in order to reflect an amendment to the District's boundaries to include additional 

acres and associated infrastructure improvements not included in the Original Methodology. The 

Supplemental Methodology applied herein has two goals: (1) identifying the special benefits received by 

properties within the District as a result of the installation of the District's improvements and facilities, 

and (2) reasonably allocating the costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to properties in 

the District. 

The District has implemented a capital improvement program ("CIP") that will allow for the development 

of property within the District. The District plans to fund the majority of its CIP through bond debt 

financing. This bond debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non-ad valorem special assessments levied 

by the District's Board of Supervisors (the "Board"). These special assessments will serve as liens 

against properties within the boundary of the District that receive a special benefit from the CIP. This 

Supplemental Methodology is designed to conform to the requirements of Chapters 170, 190, and 197 

of the Florida Statutes with respect to special assessments and is consistent with our understanding of 

the case law on this subject. 

2 



0 

1.2 Background 

The District, as amended, includes approximately 145 gross acres of property within its boundaries. 

The District is generally located to the south of Forest Lake Drive and to the east of Holly Hill Road 

within the City of Davenport, Florida. At build-out, the District is expected to contain approximately 628 

single-family lots, landscaping, common and recreation areas, and related infrastructure. Phase 3 

("Assessment Area 3") & Phase 4 ("Assessment Area 4") are comprised of approximately 42.82 acres 

and 33.76 acres, respectively as described in Exhibit "A", attached herein. 

The District previously issued its Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds to fund infrastructure 

specially benefiting Phase 1 within the District. The District also previously issued its Series 2018 

Special Assessment Bonds to fund infrastructure specially benefitting Phase 2 with the District. The 

District now desires to issue the Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3 Project) 

(the "Assessment Area 3 Bonds") and the Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 

4 Project) (the "Assessment Area 4 Bonds") (collectively, "Series 2020 Bonds") to fund the 

infrastructure specially benefiting the properties within Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4, 

respectively (described in Exhibit "A"). The land use plan for Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 

4 within the District is found in Table 1. 

Table 1. Summary of Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 Land Plan 

Development Area Number of Single-Family Lots 

Assessment Area 3 ("AA 3") 182 

Assessment Area 4 ("AA 4") 142 

Total 324 
Source Wood & Associates Engineering, LLC 

1.3 Special Benefits and General Benefits 

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and general benefits to property 

owners located within and surrounding the District. However, in our opinion, the general benefits to the 

public at large are incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which 

accrue to property located within the District. It is the District's CIP that enables properties within the 

District's boundaries to be developed. Without the District's CIP there would be no infrastructure to 

support development of land within the District. Without these improvements, development of property 

in the District would not be permitted. 

3 



0 

The new infrastructure improvements included in the CIP create both: (1) special benefits to the 

developable property within the District and (2) general benefits to properties outside the District. The 

CIP described in the District Engineer's Report (as defined herein) enables the developable property 

within the District to be developed. Without the CIP, there would be no infrastructure to support 

development of the developable property within the District. 

1.4 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

In PFM Financial Advisors LLC ("PFM FA" and/or "Assessment Consultant") experience, there are two 

primary requirements for special assessments to be valid under Florida law. First, the properties 

assessed must receive a special benefit from the improvements paid for via the assessments. Second, 

the assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. If these two 

characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to, Florida law provides some latitude to 

legislative bodies, such as the District's Board, in approving special assessments. Indeed, Florida courts 

have found that the mathematical perfection of calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Our 

research suggests that only if the District's Board was to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair 

fashion would its assessment methods be overturned. Based on the information provided for this 

Supplemental Methodology, the special benefits received by the properties subject to the assessment at 

least equals or exceeds the amount of the assessments. 

2.0 GIP Plan of Finance 

2.1 Infrastructure Installation 

The District is installing its public infrastructure and improvements on a phased basis, as outlined in more 

detail in the "Holly Hill Road East Community Development District Third Amended and Restated 

Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements", dated January 23, 2019 ("Engineer's Report"), as prepared 

by Wood & Associates Engineering, LLC ("District Engineer"). As outlined in the Engineer's Report, the 

District plans to acquire or construct the public infrastructure necessary to serve the lands within 

Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4. The District infrastructure and improvements for 

Assessment Area 3 are designed to serve and specially benefit the lands within Assessment Area 3. 

The District infrastructure and improvements for Assessment Area 4 are designed to serve and specially 

benefit the lands within Assessment Area 4. The estimated costs for Assessment Area 3 and Assessment 

Area 4 are presented in Table 2. 

4 



0 
Table 2. Summary of Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 CIP 

Infrastructure Component Est. Costs, AA 3 Est. Costs, AA 4 

Offsite Improvements $180,000 $125,000 

Stormwater Management $2,165,800 $1,700,000 

Utilities (Water, Sewer, & Street Lighting) $1,019,200 $800,000 

Roadways $787,150 $615,000 

Entry Features & Signage $365,000 $280,000 

Parks and Amenities $382,200 $250,000 

Contingency $191,000 $150,000 

Totals $5,090,350 $3,920,000 

Source Wood & Associates Engineering, LLC 

2.2 Bond Requirements 

The District intends to finance the majority of its CIP by issuing bonds. These bonds are being issued in 

several series, as development progresses within the District. The District's Assessment Area 3 Bonds 

and Assessment Area 4 Bonds will fully or partially fund the costs of Assessment Area 3 and Assessment 

Area 4, respectively. The Assessment Area 3 Bonds will be supported by assessments imposed solely 

to properties located within Assessment Area 3 and the Assessment Area 4 Bonds will be supported by 

assessments imposed solely to properties located within Assessment Area 4. 

The details of the Series 2020 Bonds issuance required to fund Assessment Area 3 and Assessment 

Area 4, respectively is found in Table 3. As shown in Table 3, the Series 2020 Bonds include several 

component funds typical of similar bonds, including funds to pay capitalized interest, establish a debt 

service reserve, and pay the costs of issuance associated with the Series 2020 Bonds. 

5 



0 

Table 3. District Bond Financing Details (1) 

Bond Fund AA 3 AA 4 Total 

Construction & Acqu isit ion Fund $2,885,724 $2,285,485 $5,1 71 ,209 

Debt Service Reserve $238,329 $191 ,700 $430,029 

Capital ized In terest $125 ,547 $101 , 1 15 $226 ,662 

Costs of Issuance ( I nclud ing Underwriter's Fee) $270,400 $256,700 $527, 100 

Contingency !Q !Q !Q 
Bonds Principal $3,520,000 $2,835,000 $6,355,000 

Average Annual Coupon Rate: 5 .35% 5 .35% 

Term (Years) : 30 30 

Maximum Net Annual Debt Service: $238,329 $1 91 ,700 $430,029 

Maximum Gross Annual Debt Service (2) : $256,268 $206,1 29 $462,397 

( 1 ) Source: District Underwriter 

(2) Includes a 7 .0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the statutory early payment discount 

3.0 Assessment Methodology 

3.1 Assessment Foundation 

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs of the CIP is a four-step 

process. First, the District Engineer determines the costs for the District's infrastructure and related 

improvements. Second, an estimate of the amount of bonds required to finance the infrastructure 

improvements is calculated. Third, the District Engineer outlines which parcels benefit from the provision 

of infrastructure and improvements. Finally, the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and related 

improvements are allocated to the benefiting properties based on the approximate relative benefit each 

unit receives as expressed by that unit's Equivalent Residential Unit ("ERU") Factor. 

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida governments have used a variety of 

methods including, but not limited to, front footage, area, trip rates, equivalent residential units, dwelling 

units, and acreage. PFM FA has determined that an assessment methodology based on equivalent 

residential unit ("ERU") values is appropriate. These ERU values equate the benefit received by a stated 

amount of such particular land use category to the benefit received by a typical single-family residence. 

The use of ERU values to estimate the benefit derived from infrastructure improvements is recognized 

as a simple, fair, and reasonable method for apportioning benefit. ERU values are a commonly accepted 

method for calculating special benefit assessments in Florida. Here, the Assessment Consultant has 

chosen to assign an ERU value of 1.0 to each single-family lot. 

6 



0 

3.2 Allocation of Specific Assessments 

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2 and described in detail in the Engineer's Report. The 

details of the Series 2020 Bonds issuance required to fund the District's CIP is shown in Table 3. The 

principal and related assessments to secure the Assessment Area 3 Bonds will be allocated among the 

182 lots planned for Assessment Area 3 within the District. The principal and related assessments to 

secure the Assessment Area 4 Bonds will be allocated among the 142 lots planned for Assessment Area 

4 within the District. The resulting bonds principal and related annual debt service assessments assigned 

to each lot within the respective Assessment Areas are shown in the corresponding Table 4. Table 4 

becomes important as the land within each Assessment Area is platted, as specific bond debt service 

assessments will be assigned to the individual Development Units (as that term is defined below) at this 

time. 

Table 4. Summary of Allocation of Bond Principal and Annual Debt Service 

Unit T�me 

AA 3 
AA 4 

Unit Count 

182 

142 

ERUs/Unit 

1 . 00 
1 . 00 

Total ERUs 

1 82 .00 
1 42 .00 

Bond Princigal 
Allocation/ Categoa 

$3,520,000 
$2,835,000 

Bond Princigal 
Allocation/Unit 

$ 1 9 ,341 
$ 1 9 , 965 

Total 324 $6,355,000 

Unit Tyge 

AA 3 
AA 4 
Total 

Bond Net 
Annual 

Assessment/ 
Category 

$238,329 
$1 9 1,700 
$430,029 

Bond Net 
Annual 

Assessment/ 
Unit 

$ 1  , 3 1 0 
$ 1  , 350 

Bond Max Annual 
Assessment/ 
Categoa (1} 

$256,268 
$206,1 29 
$462,397 

Bond Gross Annual 
Assessment/Unit (1} 

$ 1  ,408 
$ 1  ,452 

Source: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

(1 ) Includes a 7 .0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the statutory early payment discount 

3.3 Assignment of Specific Assessments 

The Assessment Area 3 Bonds assessments for Assessment Area 3 will initially be assigned to the lands 

within Assessment Area 3 on an equal per acre basis. The assessments for Assessment Area 3 will be 

equally divided among the lots within that phase, as property is initial(yplatted . The Assessment Area 4 

Bonds assessments for Assessment Area 4 will initially be assigned to the lands within Assessment Area 

4 on an equal per acre basis. The assessments for Assessment Area 4 will be equally divided among 

the lots within that phase, as property is initial(y platted . 

7 



0 

The final assignment of bond debt to a specific lot does not take place until the land containing that lot is 

platted (a platted single-family lot will be referred to herein as a "Development Unit"). The specific bond 

debt assessment that is assigned to platted Development Units within an Assessment Area will be 

detailed in a future assessment lien roll, in accordance with the principles and allocations set forth in this 

Supplemental Methodology. 

3.4 True-Up Mechanism 

In order to ensure that the District's bond debt will not build up on the unplatted land within each 

Assessment Area, the District shall periodically apply a "true-up" test. Initially, the assessments securing 

the Assessment Area 3 Bonds and the Assessment Area 4 Bonds shall be allocated across Assessment 

Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 within the District, respectively. This bond debt shall, prior to platting, be 

allocated equally to each of the undeveloped developable acres within each Assessment Area. As 

property within each Assessment Area is platted, "true-up" or density reduction payments may become 

due based upon the amount of bond debt assessments initially assigned to each Assessment Area. 

For example, as outlined in Table 3, the $3,520,000 in bonds principal will be allocated to Assessment 

Area 3 at the time of issuance. This $3,520,000 in bonds principal is expected to be allocated equally to 

the 182 lots planned for Assessment Area 3 at the time the lots are platted. However, should it happen 

at the time of platting that only 181 lots have been identified in the plat, the owner of the Assessment 

Area 3 lands at the time of platting will be required to make a true-up payment to the District equal to the 

bonds principal assessment assigned to one single-family residence. The bonds principal true-up test 

shall be applied at the completion of the platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the gross acreage 

within Assessment Area 3 of the District. It is the responsibility of the landowner of record of the affected 

parcel to make or cause to be made any required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs 

with the land within the District. The District will not release any liens on property for which true-up 

payments are due until provision for such payment has been satisfactorily made. 

Similarly, as outlined in Table 3, the $2,835,000 in bonds principal will be allocated to Assessment Area 

4 at the time of issuance. This $2,835,000 in bonds principal is expected to be allocated equally to the 

142 lots planned for Assessment Area 4 at the time the lots are platted. However, should it happen at 

the time of platting that only 141 lots have been identified in the plat, the owner of the Assessment Area 

4 lands at the time of platting will be required to make a true-up payment to the District equal to the bonds 

principal assessment assigned to one single-family residence. The bonds principal true-up test shall be 

applied at the completion of the platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the gross acreage within 

Assessment Area 4 of the District. It is the responsibility of the landowner of record of the affected parcel 

to make or cause to be made any required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs with the 

land within the District. The District will not release any liens on property for which true-up payments are 

due until provision for such payment has been satisfactorily made. The true-up thresholds for the lands 

within Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 of the District are found in Table 5. 

8 



0 

Table 5 .  Series 2020 Bonds, Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 True-Up Thresholds 

_ Category _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  �o� _ _ _ _ _ _  7�� _ _ _ _ _  �0_o/<:_ _ _ _ _  �o_o�_ 
AA 3 Developed Acres 2 1 .4 32 . 1  38 . 5  42 .8  
AA 3 Undev. Acres 2 1 .4 1 0 . 7  4 .3 0 .0  
Debt per Undev. AA 3 Acre $82,205 $82,205 $82,205 $82,205 
AA 4 Developed Acres 1 6 . 9  25 .3 30 .4 33. 8  
AA 4 Undev. Acres 1 6 . 9  8 .4 3 .4 0 . 0  
Debt per Undev. AA 4 Acre $83,976 $83, 976 $83, 976 $83, 976 

Source: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

In the event that additional land not currently subject to the assessments required to repay the debt 

associated with the District is developed in such a manner as to receive special benefit from District 

improvements, it is contemplated that this Supplemental Methodology will be re-applied to include such 

new parcels. The additional land, as a result of applying this Supplemental Methodology, will be allocated 

an appropriate share of the special assessments, while all then-assessed parcels will receive a relative 

adjustment in their assessment levels. 

4.0 Contribution of District Infrastructure and/or Improvements 

The costs of the District's CIP will likely be funded by two mechanisms. The first mechanism is the 

issuance of special assessment bonds. The second mechanism is the contribution of funds or CIP 

components to the District ("Contribution"). Property owners within the District will have the opportunity 

to make such a Contribution upon approval by the District. 

A District property owner's Contribution will give rise to assessment credits that can be applied by the 

property owner to reduce or eliminate bond debt service assessments that would otherwise be assigned 

to lands within the District to fund the costs of the CIP. Prior to a property owner reducing or eliminating 

bond debt service assessments through a Contribution, it must be shown that the improvements funded 

or contributed by the property owner are a component of the CIP, as outlined in the Engineer's Report. 

The property owner will be permitted to apply assessment credits equal to the value of the Contribution 

plus the costs of financing the improvement(s) that would otherwise have been incurred by the District if 

the District were required to issue bonds to fund or acquire the improvement(s) (such that the property 

would not be responsible for bond financing costs if the Contribution was made prior to the District's 

issuance of special assessment bonds). A property owner possessing assessment credits due to a 

Contribution will, in the District's discretion, have the opportunity to use the assessment credits to adjust 

bond debt service assessment levels of Development Units. 

9 



0 

5.0 Assessment Roll 

Table 6 outlines the bond principal assessment per acre for the Assessment Area 3 and Assessment 

Area 4 lands within the District. A description of the land within the District, which will be assessed to 

secure the repayment of the District's bonds, is found in Exhibit "A." The assessments shall be paid in 

not more than thirty (30) annual installments. 

Table 6. Assessment Roll Summary (AA 3 and AA 4) 

Assess 
Area 

Parcel ID  Acres 

Series 2020 
Bonds 

Princiga l 
Assessment 

Bond 
Princiga l 

Assessment 
ger Acre 

Series 2020 
Bonds Net 

Annual 
Assessment 

Series 2020 
Bonds Net 

Annual 
Assessment 

ger Acre 

Series 2020 
Bonds Gross 

Annual 
Assessment 

ill 

Series 2020 
Bonds Gross 

Annual 
Assessment 
ger Acre {1) 

3 27270572550001 02 1 0  4 .80 $394,582 $82,205 $26,7 1 6  $5,566 $28,727 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0230 4 .80 $394,582 $82,205 $26,7 1 6  $5,566 $28,727 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0290 4 .75 $390,472 $82,205 $26,438 $5,566 $28,428 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0280 4 .75 $390,472 $82,205 $26,438 $5,566 $28,428 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0270 4 .77 $392, 1 1 6  $82,205 $26, 549 $5,566 $28,547 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0260 4 .77 $392, 1 1 6  $82,205 $26, 549 $5,566 $28,547 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0221 4 .8 1  $395,404 $82,205 $26, 772 $5,566 $28,787 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0251 4 .64 $38 1 ,429 $82,205 $25, 825 $5,566 $27,769 $5,985 

3 27270572550001 0240 4 .73 $388,828 $82,205 $26,326 $5,566 $28,308 $5,985 

Tota l, AA 3 42.82 $3,520,000 $238,329 $256,268 

4 2727057260000401 40 4 .86 $408, 1 2 1 $83, 976 $27,597 $5,678 $29, 674 $6, 1 06 

4 2727057260000401 30 4 .87 $408,961 $83, 976 $27,654 $5,678 $29,735 $6, 1 06 

4 2727057260000401 20 4 .87 $408,961 $83, 976 $27,654 $5,678 $29,735 $6, 1 06 

4 27270572600004021 0  4 .87 $408,961 $83, 976 $27,654 $5,678 $29,735 $6, 1 06 

4 272705726000040220 4 .86 $408 , 1 06 $83,976 $27,596 $5,678 $29,673 $6, 1 06 

4 272705726000040230 4 .88 $409 ,801 $83,976 $27 ,7 1 0 $5,678 $29,796 $6, 1 06 

4 272705726000040241 3 .72 $31 2 ,389 $83,976 $21 , 1 23 $5,678 $22,7 1 3  $6, 1 06 

4 272705726000040242 0 .83 $69,700 $83,976 $4,7 1 3  $5,678 $5,068 $6, 1 06 

Tota l, AA 4 33.76 $2,835,000 $1 91 ,700 $206,1 29 

TOTAL 76.58 $6,355,000 $430,029 $462,397 

(1 ) Values include the 7 .0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the statutory early payment discount 

Source: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

10 



0 
EXH IBIT "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 

0 G IN AT THE J>.IORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID lllACT �9, AN D RUN THE NCE ALONG THE NOi\TH LIN E THEREOF S,89" 53'0 &"-E , ';126.18 f[ET TO TI1E NORTHEAST 
corum1 T HE I\ - OF, SAID PONT AL50 BE ING THE SOI.HHWEST CORN E R  OF SA.ID T RACT 21; TiirnCE ALONG THE WEST UN OF SAI D TRACT 21 N-00'25'33"-W, 640.90 
F EIT TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH MfllNTAIN ED l'!IGH -0 •WAY L I NE OF F<OREST  LA�E DRIVE ACCORDING TO ll!E MAP AS RECORDED IN MAP 1'1001: I 'I, PAGES 
100-108,PUOLIC RECOJIOS Of !'OLK COUNTV. flORI DA, lHENC ll�ONG SAID sourn MAI NTAINm RI GH: T-01-WAY L INE Tf,I FOlLOWING THREE (3) COURSE5: i )  
S-11!1'4!1'04"-E, 95.08 FEET; TH r nCE 1 )  S-38'0g'06"- £. 7 1 .24 F EET; THE Na: 3 )  S-S9'58'S7"·E, 160.. 16 Fen O A POINT Q r,!  TH �  �H UNE Of SAID T RACT 2.1 ; T H ma: 
oePARTING S.AID MAINTAI N EO RIGH T aOF-WAY LI NE, AN P 1\1.0 NG TH E EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT' 21 $-00' B'lll"-E, 638.91 FEET TO 11-iE SOUTHEAST CORNEIi TH EREOf. 
SJ\I D POINT Al.SO IIEIN G THE NO IUHWfST COR N ER OF SAIO TRACT 1 7; THE N(£ Al0N t5 Tt1( NOR TH U N E  Of SJII D  TMCT 27 S-89"S l'06"•E, 326,98 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEAST COIUUR TH E REOF; THENCE ALOfllG lH \\/E ST INE OF SAID TMCT B N-00•2 3• 1 1·-w. 63S.S7 FE - TO A PO IN T  ON SAID soun1 M/IJNTA!N ED 
RI G�I T·O�-WAV UN OF FORBT IAKE DRIVE; TH ENCE ALONG SA4D SOUTI-1  MAlr,ITA!NE'D RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ll1E fOLLQWINr;; TWO {2) COUR�ES: 1) S-89'36'19•.[, 
187. ,9 F EET: T'HENU 2) S-!1- 9" 59'30"-e, H9',69 FEE T TO A POlNT ON THt i'A$ 'r LINE Q.F SAJD TRACT J 3; TI-I E HCE D H•A.ft T I NG SI\ID soum MAINTAI NED RIGHI-OF-WAY 
I.INE, AND ALONG TH EAST I NE OF SAI D  Tf!AC'l" 2l S -00'2 .3'04"-E, 6,Jq_9l FEET l'O THE SOUIBE/\S CO !l�m lHERWI', SI\ID POlNT AISO ll E, 1NG Tt1E NOOTil fAST 
CORlffR Of SAID TRACT 21;i; TH rn E AlON (l; Tt1[ EAST LINE OF SA1 0  TRACT 26 S-00"22'59" -E, 63S.3S f�ET TO A POINT ON THE IIIORT H RI GH T,Of•WAY U HE  OF NORTH 
BOULEVARD WEST PER 0.R. E!OOK 781, PAG E  709 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COU N TY, FLORIDA; TH ENCE htONG S/110 NOllTH RIG�I T•<JF WAY UNE PER D.R. 
BOOK 781, PAGE 709, AND PER D.R. BOOK 781,  PIIGE G?, A.NO PU O. R. BOOK 781.  PAGE 696, /ILL IN TH E PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK cour,irv, FWRI DA, 
N,89''4 8'�4"-W, 1 305 .66 FEET  'fO A POIN T ON THE WEST LI HE Of SAilD TRAC T 29; T H f NC,E ALONG TH� W�ST LINE OF SAID T l1AC 1 29 N -CKY 26'06"-E, !;�3.7� F � E T  TO 
TH£ P<'.JIN'I' OF BEGINNING. 

PRO PERTY OESCRlBEO CON AINS 28..58 /\ClltS, MOR� OR LESS. 

MID 

l!EGIN AT A 5/8· I RON ROD i\N D CAP "LB 8 1 35," �TANOING AT me SOUlJIWESf CORNE A. 01' SAID fRACT 22, SA'ID POINT A O BE ING TH£ NORTHWE ST COR NER Of 
niiicr 27 OF SAID HOL LY f-l lU GROVE & FI\Ul l COM PAN't 5UIJDIVISION, A ND nu N ALONG T H E WES T t lNE  OF SAID TRACT 2 2 N-Q0"2 3'47"•W, 641.<19 ff ET TO 111 � 
IN T E RSECTION OF SAIO Wf:ST UN E /\NO Tl1E SOUTH MAINTAJlUO ,R IGIIT-Ql'-W,W OF FOl1EST I.Al(� OOIVf Pffl MAP B OOIC 1 7, l'AGf i 00, PUBLIC 11KOROS Of POLI( 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENC:f /\�ONG S.ll!D SOUTl"I MAI N TAI NED RIGHT•Of·WA'r' THE fOU LOWI N6 T Hl1E (3) COUR SES; 1) Ns89•4 T53'' , 10(1,:W F E ET; 21 TH ENCE  
s-sg•09•22· -E, 201i.27 F EIT; nt�NU l) S-89 '49'49'•E, 20.4 4 FEET  TO TI-IE I N lERS(CT- 1014  OF SAID S.Ol/TH MAINTAJNEO AIGHf-01'-WAV AN D TH HAST L INE Of SJ\10 
T�ACT 22 ;  THENC ALONG SAID EAST UNE S-00"2 2'4 1"-1", 64D.l!I fE.ET TO A 5/8" I R.O� ROO AN D CAP "Lil l:I U5" STAr,!DING lff n l �  SO UTH EAST CORN £R o� .SA ID 
TliACf ,:�, �l e POIN T 11 150 BEI NG mE NORTHEAST COAN EA OF SAIO iRI\CT 27; Tl"l�NCE. ALmlG THE SOU T H  UNE OF SAI D Tl'I.IICT 22, At.SO llEING T H E NOJlT hi UN£ 
Of SAIO TRAC T 27,  N ·89" 55'26"•W, 326.76F EE:T "r0 TH[ POI T OF EJ.EGr NNIN6. 

THE A.DOVE DESCRIEIED IAND� OON TAIN � .82 ACRES, MOR E Oft L E 5S. 

8!:!!? 

Bf GIN AT A 5/8" I l 'lON ROO WI TH CAP "LB 8135 11 STAN DING AT Tll E I N TE RSfat ON OF lHE WEST UN E OF SAi O lRACT 1:S AND Tl-I N Olfff-1 fl lGHT-OF-WAY OF NORTl i  ,
B OIJLI WMO WE1ST f'ER OfflCIAL RECO AOS BOOK 194,  PAGE 787, !'\JEIIIC RlaCORDS OF POU< COU l'iTY, f' LOIIIDA, J\NO Rtl/4 ALONG SAI i) WE ST LI N E  N -OO'U'n"-W, 
635.,W FEET TO 11I5/8'' l llON ROO AND CAP "L .8  ill35" $TANDIN6 AT TH � NORTH\VEST COR.NER OF SAID T RACT Z5, S.AID POINT AL50 BEING 'TH SOLI TH\YEST CORNER 
OF 51\1D TRACT 24: THE NCE AWNG T H �  MSl L INE' OF SAID TllACT 24 14•00"2 2' 38'-W. 640_5 7 F E �  iO A /8" I RON ,ROO AND CAP "L B  813 " TAHDI G AT THE IINTE R�ECT[ON OF SAID WEST UN ANO TH E SOUTH MJ\INTAINEO RI G HT-Of-WAY OF �OJl T U\J( E DR IVE PER MAJ> 8001( 17, t>AGE 1 00, PU EJ.LIC R ECORDS or POLie 
,COUNTY, FLORI DA: IBE NCE ALONG SAI O �oum M /\I NTAINeD RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWI N G [ !G iff (8) COURSESi 11 N ·89'47'Z41"-E, -l�.81 FEE T; T HE f'K E  
.!]$,89" 23 '3-l"•E, 56.5 1 Fffl'; TH ENCE 3 )  S®l'02 ' 1 5"•E, 28.73 FfET: TH E IKE 14) S-(,?'03' 33"- E, 26.�3 F E ET, TH E MCE (SjS•S9•18'02"-E, 2 S. l 7  fffl; THENCE (6) 
'>-40\12 '5�"-E, 25.66 F EET; TH ENCE (7) S-2 2•07•34•-E, n.32 i'f:IT; T M E NCE (8)S-07-00'55"·E, 14.43 F EET TO THI: [AST L INE  Of S.AI D TRACT 24 :  THENCf AlONG S/\JO 
[A.Sf UN[ S-CJO"l9'4 1"·E. 5 56.53 FUT TO A 5/�' 1 1\0N flOD .ANO CAP ·rn 8135" STANDING i\T THE 50Ultl AST C:ORN r n  OF SAID TRACT 2<1, SAID POINT At.SO BEING 
THE NO:RTH,EAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 2 5; THr nCE ALONG THE EAST UNE OF S.i\lD TllhCI' 25 s-oo· 19'4 1 11 . f, 6%,0<I FE IT  TO l'HE NOR'T I HIIGH T•OF-WA'I' OF NORTH 
B OUL EVARD WEST P I Hi omOAL RE 'OR OS BOOK i9d. PAGE 781. l>UBUC RECORDS OF POLK CO UN TV, FLOf'I I DA; THE NCE ALOIJG MIO HO:RTH RtGH T-OF-W,'IY 
N -89'48' 3 6"·W, n4. 57 F E E T  TO THE POIN T 01' BEGINNING , 

HIE AbOVi OESCRID D t/\NDS. CONTAIN <J.48. ACRES., MORE Oil Ll!'S.S. 

11 



0 
EXH IBIT "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

TRA!CT 1 4 I N TH S OUTH \/ ES ¼ 0 S CTIO IN O S , TOW S H IP 2 7 SO UTH , RA G 2 7 AST. 
P O  K CO U N , F LO RIIDA, 0 " LO RI DA DI VI LO PM N CO . TRACT, " ACCO R DI G TO H ti AP 
OR PLAT H RE O • AS CO R DE D I N P T IB OO I<  3, P'AG I S 6'0 - 63, PUB LIC R CO DS O PO LK 

COU TY , I LO RI DA . 

Al D 

TRACT 1 3  I N TH S OUTH \I S ¾ 0 S CTIO IN  O S , TOW S H IP 2 7 SO UTH , RA G 2 7 AST, 

P O K CO U N , F LO RI IDA, 0 " LO RI DA DI VI LO PM N CO . TRACT. " ACCO IR. DI G TO H M AP 

OR PLAT H RE O F. AS CO R DE D I N P T IB OO I< 3, P·AG I °S 60 - 63, PUB LIC IR. CO R DS O PO LK 

COU TY , !F LO RI DA . 

Al D 

TRA!CT 1 2  I N TH S OUTHW S ¼ 0 S CT I O IN O S , l'OW S H IP 2 7 SO UTH , RA G 2 7 AST, 

P O  K CO U N , F LO RI IDA, 0 " LO RI DA DI VI LO PM N CO . TRACT, " ACCO R DII G TO H M AP 

OR P T H RE O • AS COR DE D I N P T I 00 1< 3, P'AGI S 6'0- 63, PUB LIC ll CO DS O PO LK 
COU TY , I l.O RI DA . 

A U. AL.:SO B E:I N G D 

BI GI N AT A 5/8 f f  I RO N R OD ( N O IDE NTI ICA :A N o:!N G A N ORTH EAS CO R INI R 0 

SAID R ACT 1 2 , AN D RU N A L.O N G ST LI E S-0 0 R° 2 9•'0,7 ff •E , 64 1 . 9·3 

ET TO A 5/B ffF I R O RO D { Nil ICAT A DI N G, A O UTH EAST CO N R 0 
· ' SAID T AACT 1 2 ; nt N CI .· TH S, II CT'S 1 2 , 1 3  AN D 1 4  

N -8 9·0 3 8 ' 1 8 " -W , 992 . S l FE E 5/ 8 " I RO ( 0 O N ) STA 
SO Unt W ST CO R NI R O SAID TRACT 1 4 , N .· W ST 
N -0 0R° 2 8 '4 8 " -W ,  ,640. 28 FE ET TO A 5/ 8 " I RO ( · , O N ) STA 

N O R H VE S,T CO RN E R  O F SAI D TRACT 1 A N TH U N O 
1 2 , 1 3, A D 1 4 5•8 9 R° 4 4 '10 1 " -E , 992 .43 F nt E IN N NI N iG 

P ROIPE RTl' D• SCRI BE D C ON Al II G 1 4 . 6, 1 AC RE S , MO R E O R LE S:S . 

G A 

ID RACT5 

12 



0 
EXH IBIT "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 4 (conti nued) 

TRACT 2 1 A IN D 2 2 IN TH S OU THW E ST ¼ 0 S CT I O 1(1 • OW INS HI P 2 7 SOUTH , RA NG 2 7  

E AST, IPO CO U TY , LORI D A, O F " F LOR ID A V E LOP M NT CO . RACl", H ACCO R DI NG TO THI!R
MIAP O R  P T TH RE O F, JJ..S R CO R O D IN PLA BO OK 3, P·AG S 6 0 - 6 3, P UIB LIC R C OR O OFIR
P OLK COU N TY, LO I OA. 

A IN D  

TRACT 2 3  IN T H  S OU H \'li'E S.T ¼ 0 SI CTIO N 1(15, TOW S H IP· 2 7 S OUT H, RA N G 2 7 AST, PO UK 

COUI TY , F LO RIIOA, OF " LO I UDA DEVE LO M E N C O. TRACT, " ACC OR D IN G O H MAP O P LA 
TH RE O • AS R COR D E D N P LAT 00 3, PAG S 60 -6,3 , PU LIC R CO R D S, 0 POLK COU N TY. 

F LO RIIOA. 

A IN D 

TRACT 2 4  IN T HI S OU H 'li'E ST ¾ 0 SI CTIO N 1(1 , TOW S H IP' 2 7 S OUT H, RA N G 2 7 A S  , PO LI K 

COU NTY , F LO RIIOA, OF " LO I UDA DEVE LO PM E N C O. TRACT, " ACC OR D IN G O H MAP O R P LA 
TH RE O • AS IR CO R DI D I N B OO K 3 , PAG S 60 -6,3 , P UIB lJ C RE CO R DS O P O K COU N TY, LO RIDA,IR
LI s·s TH E  S OUTH 1 4 E T TH E R O , AN D L ss T H E I AST 2 5 F H IR E OF OR RI G H -O F-WAY 
P O F ICIAL IR CO R DS BO OK 7 8 1 .  ?AG 7 2 1 .  PU B LIC R CO DS O PO LIK COU TY , F LO RI DA ,IR

A IN D 

TH SO UTH 1 1 4 FI ET OF RACT 24 II TH 'SO UTH W ST ¾. 0 SI CTIO N O S, TOW SH l P 2 7IR
SO UT , RA GE 2 7 I AST, PO LIK CO U NTY, FLOIR. I OA, OF " F LO I DA 0 V E LOP M I T CO ,I 1R
TRACT , " ACCO D II G TO M! A P OR LA TH E R O F , AS RI C OR D I N LAT B OO K 3, AG S 
60-6,3 , PU B LIC IR ECOIR DS O F PO LI K CO U NTY . LO DA ,  L SS T HI T TH E RE O F FO RIR
R IGH - OF- AV P R O IC rA R EC OR D S BO O I< 7 8 1 , PAG,E 7 2 1 , PO UKIR
COUI TY , 

A LL A l.S 

B GI N A . . 0 IDE N TI IC-A O l STAI , I N 1G, AT T H  N O R T H  \IE S,T C ORI EIR
SAID TRA l , RU N T H EN C ALON G TH E N ORT H LI N O SAI D TRACTS 2 

s.sg. •38 ' 1 8 "-I , 1 2 98 , 3 5 E T TO A 5/8 " RO N R OD ( 0 IDE NTI ICAT IOI l STAN D I  G A 
IN R S cn oN OF SAI ID O RTH U N A IN D TH E  W ST RIG HT-0 - VAY O F HO LLY HI LL R OA D: I

' OF FICIAL RE CO R D'S 8 00 1< 7 8 1 .  P · 1 OF U B  IC RE CO O LK F O RI CA;IR
TH N C G SAID W ST RIG AY, S - 00 " 29'2 , '64 TO fl.SE CTIO N 

OF S.AI D NGHT- 0 -WAY A SO U E SA ID 4 ; 0 G 
SO UT LI · F SAID TRACTS 2 1- 24 N - 89 " 3 • 8 . 41 6 0 A 5/8 " IRO N  R OD ( 
I DE N 'Tl IC l S AN DI G A T H SO UTH W R I OF SA I D TRACT 2 1 ; T H 

TH WE ST LI N TH E R  O N- 0 0" 2 9' 00 " - , 64 , T H POI NT O B E G IN N IN G 

P ROIPE RTY D• SCRI B E D C ON Al I G 1 9 . 1 5 AC RE'S , MO R O R LE S:S . 

13 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2020-1  0 

(provided under separate cover) 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Supplemental Assessment Report 



0 
pfm 

SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

METHODOLOGY REPORT, 

BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 201 8 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

May 2020 

Prepared for : 

Members of the Board of Supervisors, 
Ho l ly H i l l  Road East Community Development D istr ict 

Prepared on May 14, 2020 

PFM F i nanc ia l  Advi sors LLC 

12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 



0 

SUPPLEMENTALASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT, 
BOND ANTICIPATIONNOTE,SERIES 2018 

HOLL V HI LL ROAD EAST COMM UNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

May 13, 2020 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2018, dated May 

13,  2020 ("BAN Methodology") provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem special 

assessments securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be issued by the Holly Hill Road East 

Community Development District ("District") to fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements and 

facilities. This Supplemental Methodology operates pursuant to the District's "Third Am ended & Restated 

Master Assessment Methodology Report" dated January 31 ,  2019 ('Third Master Methodology"), which 

effectively amended and restated the District's "Second Amended & Restated Master Assessment 

Methodology Report" dated December 19,  2018 ("Second Master Methodology"), which effectively 

am ended and restated the District's "ftm ended & Restated Master Assessment Methodology Report" 

dated March 21 ,  2018 ("Master Methodology"), which effectively amended and restated the District's 

"Master Assessment Methodology Report," dated September 20, 2017 ("Original Master Methodology") 

in order to reflect an am endmentto the District's boundaries to include additional acres and associated 

infrastructure improvements not included in the Original Methodology. The BAN Methodology applied 

herein has two goals: (1) identifying the special benefits received by properties within the District as a 

result of the installation of the District's improvements and facilities, and (2) reasonably allocating the 

costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to properties in the District. 

The District has implemented a capital improvement program ("CIP") that will allow for the development 

of property within the District. The District plans to fund the majority of its CIP through bond debt 

financing. This bond debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non-ad valorem special assessments levied 

by the District's Board of Supervisors (the "Board"). These special assessments will serve as liens 

against properties within the boundary of the District that receive a special benefit from the CIP. This 

BAN Methodology is designed to conform to the requirements of Chapters 170, 190, and 197 of the 

Florida Statutes with respect to special assessments and is consistent with our understanding of the 

case law on this subject. 

2 



0 

1.2 Background 

The District, as amended, includes approximately 145 gross acres of property within its boundaries. 

The District is generally located to the south of Forest Lake Drive and to the east of Holly Hill Road 

within the City of Davenport, Florida. ftJ. build-out, the District is expected to contain approximately628 
single-family lots, landscaping, common and recreation areas, and related infrastructure. Phase 3 

("Assessment Area 3") & Phase 4 ("Assessment Area 4") are com prised of approximately 42.82 acres 

and 33.76 acres, respectively as described in Exhibit "P.:.', attached herein. 

The District previously issued its Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds ("Series 2017 Bonds") to fund 
infrastructure specially benefiting Phase 1 within the District. The District also previously issued its 

Series 2018 Special Assessment Bonds ("Series 2018 Bonds") to fund infrastructure specially 

benefitting Phase 2 with the District. 

In addition to the Series 2018 Bonds, the District issued its Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2018 ("BAN 
Series 2018") on or about October 24, 2018 in an amount not to exceed $550,000 to HHR East, LLC, 

a Florida limited liability company (the "Lender"). The District is in the process of issuing its Special 

Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3 Project, Citrus Landing) (the "Assessment Area 

3 Bonds") and the Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 4 Project, Citrus 

Reserve) (the "Assessment ftrea 4 Bonds") (collectively, "Series 2020 Bonds") to fund the infrastructure 

specially benefiting the properties within Assessment Area 3 and Assessment ftrea 4, respectively 

(described in Exhibit "�'). The land use plan for Assessment Area 3 and Assessment ftrea 4 within the 

District is found in Table 1 .  

Table 1 .  Summary of Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 Land Plan 

Development Area Number of Single-Family Lots 

Assessment Area 3 ("AA 3") 182 

Assessment Area 4 ("AA 4") 142 

To1al 324 
Source Wood &A:sociates Engineering LLC 

This BAN Series 2018 was provided as an Amenity Center Line of Credit, as such the Lender has 
advanced sums totaling $51 2,655.49 on behalf of the District to fund a portion of the costs of the 

ftrn enity Center, of which $287,973.15 is allocable to Assessment Area 3 and $224,682.34 is allocable 

to Assessment ftrea 4 (see Table 2). 

3 

https://224,682.34
https://287,973.15
https://512,655.49


0 
Table 2. BAN Series 2018, Summary of Principal 

Date 

1/15/2019 

2/19/2019 

4/16/2019 

4/24/2019 

5/17/2019 

5/31/2019 

6/10/2019 

6/28/2019 

Advances 

$100,735.60 

$40,592.19 

$36,888.25 

$175,263.40 

$126,727.08 

$190.54 

$13,362.63 

§18,895.80 

$512,655.49 

Principal 

Assessment Area 3 (Citrus Landing) $287,973.15 

Assessment Area 4 (Citrus Reserve) $224,682.34 

TOTAL $512 655.49 
Source Developer and PFMFinancial Mvisors, LLC 

These am aunts, plus accrued interest at the annual rate of 5.50% from the date of each advance as 
evidence by the BAN Series 2018, were intended to be paid from proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds 

associated with Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4. The timing of the Series 2020 Bonds for 

Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 are uncertain. As a result, the District intends to extend 

the maturity date of the BAN Series 2018 from December5, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 

1.3 Special Benefits and General Benefits 

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and general benefits to property 

owners located within and surrounding the District. However, in our opinion, the general benefits to the 

public at large are incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which 

accrue to property located within the District. It is the District's GIP that enables properties within the 

District's boundaries to be developed. Without the District's GIP there would be no infrastructure to 

support development of land within the District. Without these improvements, development of property 

in the District would not be perm itted. 

The new infrastructure improvements included in the GIP create both: (1) special benefits to the 

developable property within the District and (2) general benefits to properties outside the District. The 

GIP described in the District Engineer's Report (as defined herein) enables the developable property 

within the District to be developed. Without the GIP, there would be no infrastructure to support 

development of the developable property within the District. 

4 

https://224,682.34
https://287,973.15
https://512,655.49
https://18,895.80
https://13,362.63
https://126,727.08
https://175,263.40
https://36,888.25
https://40,592.19
https://100,735.60


0 

1.4 Requirements of a Va Ii d Assessment Methodology 

In PFM Financial Advisors LLC ("PFM FA" and/or "Assessment Consultant") experience, there are two 

primary requirements for special assessments to be valid under Florida law. First, the properties 

assessed must receive a special benefit from the improvements paid for via the assessments. Second, 

the assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. If these two 

characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to, Florida law provides some latitude to 

legislative bodies, such as the District's Board, in approving special assessments. Indeed, Florida courts 

have found that the mathematical perfection of calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Our 

research suggests that only if the District's Board was to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair 

fashion would its assessment methods be overturned. Based on the information provided for this 

Supplemental Methodology, the special benefits received by the properties subject to the assessment at 

least equals or exceeds the am aunt of the assessments. 

2.0 GIP and BAN Series 2018 Finance 

2.1 lnfrastru ctu re Installation 

The District is installing its public infrastructure and improvements on a phased basis, as outlined in more 

detail in the "Holly Hill Road East Community Development District Third Amended and Restated 

Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements", dated January 23, 2019 ("Engineer's Report"), as prepared 

by Wood & Associates Engineering, LLC ("District Engineer"). As outlined in the Engineer's Report, the 

District plans to acquire or construct the public infrastructure necessary to serve the lands within 

Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4. The District infrastructure and improvements for 

Assessment ftrea 3 are designed to serve and specially benefit the lands within Assessment Area 3.  

The District infrastructure and improvements for Assessment Area 4 are designed to serve and specially 

benefit the lands within Assessment ftrea 4. The estimated costs for Assessment Area 3 and Assessment 

ftrea 4 are presented in Table 3.  

5 



0 
Table 3. Summary of AssessmentArea 3 and AssessmentArea 4 CIP 

Infrastructure Component Est. Costs,AA3 Est. Costs, AA 4 

Offsite lll1)rovements $180,000 $125,000 

Stormwater Management $2,165,800 $1,700,000 

Utilities (Water, Sewer, &Street Lighting) $1,019,200 $800,000 

Roadways $787,150 $615,000 

Entry Features &Signage $365,000 $280,000 

Parks and Amenities $382,200 $250,000 

Contingency $191,000 $150,000 

Totals $5,090,350 $3,920,000 

Source Wood &Associates Engineerilg, LLC 

2.2 BAN Seri es 2 018 Requirements 

The District issued its BAN Series 2018 on or about October 24, 2018 in an amount not to exceed 

$550,000 to the Lender. This BAN Series 2018 was provided as an Amenity Center Line of Credit, as 

such the Lender has advanced sums totaling $512,655.49 on behalfof the District to fund a portion of 

the costs of the Amenity Center. These amounts, plus accrued interest at the annual rate of 5.50% 

from the date of each advance as evidence by the BAN Series 2018, were intended to be paid from 

proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds associated with Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4. The 

timing of the Series 2020 Bonds for Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 are uncertain. As a 

result, the District intends to extend the maturity date of the BAN Series 2018 from December 5, 2020 

to June 30, 2021. To secure repayment of the BAN Series 2018 at or prior to maturity, the District 

intends to comm ence assessm ent proceedings to authorize the imposition, levy and collection of non

ad valorem special assessments pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197 Florida Statutes ("BAN Series 

2018 Assessments"), on benefited lands within Assessment .Area 3 and Assessment Area 4. 

3.0 Assessment Methodology 

3.1 Assessment Foundation 

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs of the CIP is a four-step 

process. First, the District Engineer determ ines the costs for the District's infrastructure and related 

improvements. Second, an estimate of the amount of bonds required to finance the infrastructure 

improvements is c ale ulated. Third, the District Engineeroutlines which parcels benefit from the provision 

of infrastructure and improvements. Finally, the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and related 

improvements are allocated to the benefiting properties based on the approximate relative benefit each 

unit receives as expressed by that unit's Equivalent Residential Unit ("ERU") Factor. 

6 

https://512,655.49


0 

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida governments have used a variety of 

methods including, but not limited to, front footage, area, trip rates, equivalent residential units, dwelling 

units, and acreage. PFM FA has determined that an assessment methodology based on equivalent 

residential unit ("ERU") values is appropriate. These ERU values equate the benefit received by a stated 

am aunt of sue h particular land use category to the benefit received by a typical single-family residence. 

The use of ERU values to estimate the benefit derived from infrastructure improvements is recognized 

as a sim pie, fair, and reasonable method for apportioning benefit. ERU values are a com manly accepted 

method for calculating special benefit assessments in Florida. Here, the Assessment Consultant has 

chosen to assign an ERU value of 1.0 to each single-family lot. 

3.2 Allocation of Specific Assessments 

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 3 and described in detail in the Engineer's Report. The 

details of the BAN Series 2018 is shown in Table 2. The BAN Series 2018 principal associated with 

Assessment Area 3 improvements will be allocated among the 182 lots planned for Assessment kea 3 

within the District. The BAN Series 2018 principal associated with the Assessment Area 4 improvements 

will be allocated among the 142 lots planned for Assessment kea 4 within the District. The resulting 

principal allocation assigned to each lot within the respective Assessment Areas is shown in the 

corresponding Table 4. As detailed in Section 2.2, the BAN Series 2018 includes a provision for accrued 

interest at an annual rate of 5.50% from the date of each advance. Table 4 becomes important with 

respectto the calculation ofaccrued interest for Assessment kea 3 and Assessment Area 4, respectively 

based on the terms of when the BAN Series 2018 is due and payable for each Assessment Area (see 

Section 3 .3). 

7 



0 

Table 4. Summary of Allocation of BAN Series2018 Principal and Accrued lnterest:(1) 

Date 

1/15/2019 

2/19/2019 

4116/2019 

4/24/2019 

5/17/2019 

5/31/2019 

6/10/2019 

6/28/2019 

Advances$ 

$100,735.60 

$40,592.19 

$36,888.25 

$175,263.40 

$126,727.08 

$190.54 

$13,362.63 

$18,895.80 

$512,655.49 

Maturity: Date 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

6/30/2021 

Days* 

885 

851 

794 

786 

763 

750 

740 

722 

Accrued Interest 

$13,620.29 

$5,277.55 

$4,474.75 

$21,046.21 

$14,772.51 

$21.83 

$1,510.72 

$2,084.31 

$62,808.1 7  

Toial 

$114,355.89 

$45,869.74 

$41,363.00 

$196,309.61 

$141 ,499.59 

$212.37 

$14,873.35 

$20,980.11 

$575,463.66 

Principal Lois % Accrued Interest To1al Due 

Assessment Area 3 ( Ci1rus Landing) $287,973.15 182 56.2% $35,281.13 $323,254.28 

Assessment Area 4 ( Citrus Reserve) $224,682.34 142 43.8% $27,527.04 $252,209.38 

TOTAL $512 655.49 324 100.0% $62 808.17 $575 463.66 

*Days caculated us ng a 36J-<1ayyea-l i 

Per Lot Principal Accrued Interest To1al Due 

Assessment Area 3 ( Ci1rus Landing) $1,582.27 $193.85 $1,776.12 

Assessment Area 4 ( Citrus Reserve) $1,582.27 $193.85 $1,776.12 

TOTAL $1 582.27 $193.85 $1 776.12 

Source Developer and PFMF nancial Advsors LLC i i 

(1) /lccrued interest ca culat ons based on rraturitydate 016130/21, actua aocrued interest cou d vary based upon actua r(l)ayrmnt date l i l l l 

3.3 Assignment of BAN Seri es 2018 Assessments and Terms of BAN Seri es 2 018 Repayment 

Assignment of BAN Series 2018 Assessments 

The BAN Series 2018 assessments for Assessment Area 3 will initially be assigned to the lands within 

Assessment Area 3 on an equal per acre basis. The BAN Series 2018 assessments for Assessment 

ftrea 3 will be equally divided among the lots within that phase, as property is initia/Jyplatted. The BAN 

Series 2018 assessments for Assessment Area 4 will initially be assigned to the lands within Assessment 

ftrea 4 on an equal per acre basis. The BAN Series 2018 assessments for Assessment Area 4 will be 

equally divided among the lots within that phase, as property is initially platted. 

The final assignment of BAN Series 2018 debt to a specific lot does not take place until the land 

containing that lot is platted (a platted single-tam ily lotwill be referred to herein as a "Development Unit"). 

The specific bond debt assessment that is assigned to platted Development Units within an Assessment 

ftrea will be detailed in a future assessment lien roll, in accordance with the principles and allocations 

set forth in this BAN Methodology. BAN Series 2018 principal and accrued interest will be calculated by 

the District Manager at the time of repayment within each Assessment Area. 

8 



0 

Terms ofBAN Series 2018 Repayment Assessment Area 3 

The BAN Series 2018 associated with Assessment Area 3 is to be due and payable on each lot at the 

time such lot is sold to a homebuilder, but in no event later than the maturity date of the BAN Series 

2018. The lien of the BAN Series 2018 assessments within Assessment Area 3 is subject and 

subordinate to the lien of non-ad valorem special assessments associated with the proposed Series 2020 

Bonds to be issued to finance infrastructure improvements for Assessment ftrea 3. 

Terms ofBAN Series 2018 Repayment Assessment Area 4 

The BAN Series 2018 associated with Assessment Area 4 is to be due and payable on each lot at the 

time the first series of special assessment bonds (currently, the proposed Series 2020 Bonds) shall be 

issued to finance infrastructure improvements for Assessment Area 4, but in no event later than the 

maturity date of the BAN Series 2018. The lien of the BAN Series 2018 assessments within Assessment 

ftrea 4 shall be on parity with the lien of non-ad valorem special assessments associated with the 

proposed Series 2020 Bonds to be issued to finance infrastructure improvements for Assessment Area 

4. 

3.4 True-Up Mechanism 

In order to ensure that the District's BAN Series 2018 debt will not build up on the unplatted land within 

each Assessment ftrea, the District shall periodically apply a 'true-up" test. Initially, the assessments 

securing the Assessment ftrea 3 Bonds and the Assessment ftrea 4 Bonds shall be allocated across 

Assessment Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 within the District, respectively. This bond debt shall, prior 

to platting, be allocated equally to each of the undeveloped developable acres within each Assessment 

ftrea. As property within each Assessment Area is platted, 'true-up" or density reduction payments may 

become due based upon the amount of bond debt assessments initially assigned to each Assessment 

ftrea. 

For exam ple, as outlined in Table 4, the $287,953.17 in bonds principal (and accrued interest) will be 

allocated to Assessment Area 3 at the time of issuance. This $287,953.17 in bonds principal (and 

accrued interest) is expected to be allocated equally to the 182 lots planned for Assessment Area 3 at 

the time the lots are platted. However, should it happen at the time of platting that only 181 lots have 

been identified in the plat, the owner of the Assessment ftrea 3 lands at the time of platting will be 

required to make a true-up payment to the District equal to the bonds principal assessment( and ace rued 

interest) assigned to one single-family residence. The bonds principal true-up test shall be applied at 

the completion of the platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the gross acreage within Assessment 

Area 3 of the District. It is the responsibility of the landowner ofrecord of the affected pare el to make or 

cause to be made any required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs with the land within 

the District. The District will not release any liens on property for which true-up payments are due until 

provision for sue h payment has been satisfactorily made. 

9 

https://287,953.17
https://287,953.17


-------------

0 

$7,549 $7,549 $7,549 $7,549 

$7,471 $7,471 $7,471 $7,471 

Similarly, as outlined in Table 4, the $224,682.34 in bonds principal (and accrued interest) will be 

allocated to Assessment Area 4 at the time of issuance. This $224,682.34 in bonds principal (and 

accrued interest) is expected to be allocated equally to the 142 lots planned for Assessment Area 4 at 

the time the lots are platted. However, should it happen at the time of platting that only 141 lots have 

been identified in the plat, the owner of the Assessment Area 4 lands at the time of platting will be 

required to make a true-up payment to the District equal to the bonds principal assessment assigned to 

one single-family residence. The bonds principal true-up test shall be applied at the completion of the 

platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the gross acreage within Assessment Area 4 of the District. It 

is the responsibility of the landowner of record of the affected parcel to make or cause to be made any 

required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs with the land within the District. The District 

will not release any liens on property for which true-up payments are due until provision for such payment 

has been satisfactorily made. The true-up thresholds for the lands within Assessment Area 3 and 

Assessment Area 4 of the District are found in Table 5. 

Table 5. BAN Series 2018, Assessment Area 3 and 

Assessment Area 4 True-Up Thresholds* 

_s;at�go_r:y 50% 75% --------�- 100% 

AA 3 Developed Acres 21.4 32.1 38.5 42.8 

AA 3 Undev. Acres 21.4 10.7 4.3 0.0 

Debtper Undev. AA 3 Acre 

AA 4 Developed Acres 16.9 25.3 30.4 33.8 

AA 4 Undev. Acres 16.9 8.4 3.4 0.0 

Debt per Undev. AA 4 Acre 

Source PFM F nancial Advsors LL C i i 

'True-up Threshold cal::ulations incude principa and accrued interest as of the June 30, 2ce1 rmturty dae l l i 

(Actual true-up value wi II be estat1ishe d at the ti rm of re payrrentwithin each Assessrrent Area andcalcu ali on of accrued interest) 

In the event that additional land not currently subject to the assessments required to repay the debt 

associated with the District is developed in such a manner as to receive special benefit from District 

improvements, it is contemplated that this BAN Methodology will be re-applied to include such new 

parcels. The additional land, as a result of applying this BAN Methodology, will be allocated an 

appropriate share of the special assessments, while all then-assessed parcels will receive a relative 

adjustment in their assessment levels. 

10 

https://224,682.34
https://224,682.34


0 

4.0 Assessment Roll 

Table 6 outlines the bond principal assessment ( and ace rued interest as of June 30, 2021) per acre for 

the Assessment .Area 3 and Assessment Area 4 lands within the District. A description of the land within 

the District, which will be assessed to secure the repayment of the District's bonds, is found in Exhibit 

"A." The assessments shall be paid in not more than thirty (30) annual installments. 

Table 6. Assessment Roll Summary(AA 3 and AA 4) 

BAN Series 
BAN Series 

BAN Series 
BAN Series 

BAN Series 

Assess 
Area 

Parcel ID Acres 
2018 Bonds 

Principal 

2018 

Principal 
Assessment 

2018 Accrued 
Interest 

2018 Accrued 
Interest 

Assessment 

BAN Series 
2018 Total 

Assessment 

2018 Total 
Assessment 

Assessment 
per Acre 

Assessment' 
per Acre* 

per Acre 

3 272705725500010210 4.80 $32,281 $6, 725 $3,955 $824 $36,236 $7,549 

3 272705725500010230 4.80 $32,281 $6, 725 $3,955 $824 $36,236 $7,549 

3 272705725500010290 4 .75 $31,945 $6, 725 $3,914 $824 $35,858 $7,549 

3 272705725500010280 4.75 $31,945 $6,725 $3,914 $824 $35,858 $7,549 

3 272705725500010270 4.77 $32,079 $6, 725 $3,930 $824 $36,009 $7,549 

3 272705725500010260 4.77 $32,079 $6, 725 $3,930 $824 $36,009 $7,549 

3 272705725500010221 4.81 $32,348 $6, 725 $3,963 $824 $36,311 $7,549 

3 272705725500010251 4.64 $31,205 $6, 725 $3,823 $824 $35,028 $7,549 

3 272705725500010240 4.73 $31,810 $6, 725 $3,897 $824 $35,707 $7,549 

Total. AA 3 42.82 $287,973 $35,281 $323,254 

4 272705726000040140 4.86 $32,345 $6, 655 $3,963 $815 $36,308 $7,471 

4 272705726000040130 4.87 $32,411 $6, 655 $3,971 $815 $36,382 $7,471 

4 272705726000040120 4.87 $32,411 $6, 655 $3,971 $815 $36,382 $7,471 

4 272705726000040210 4.87 $32,411 $6, 655 $3,971 $815 $36,382 $7,471 

4 
272705726000040220 4.86 $32,344 $6, 655 $3,963 $815 $36,306 $7,471 

4 
272705726000040230 4.88 $32,478 $6, 655 $3,979 $815 $36,457 $7,471 

4 
272705726000040241 3.72 $24,758 $6, 655 $3,033 $815 $27,791 $7,471 

4 
272705726000040242 0.83 $5,524 $6, 655 $677 $815 $6,201 $7,471 

Total. AA 4 33.76 $224,682 $27,527 $252,209 

TOTAL 76.58 $512,655 $62,808 $575,464 

Source PFM Financial Ad�sors LLC 

*/lccrued interest as ofthe June 30, 2021 rmtur ty date (rmyvary by Assessrmnt /\rea based ontirring of repayrmnt) i 

11 



� 

0 
EXHI Bl T "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS,ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 

OEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF S/10 Tlll\CT 29, ANP RUN TllENC.£ ALONG THE NORTH UNE mrnrnF S·89'53'06"-E, 326.18 FEET TO TlfE NORTHEAST I
CORNEA THEREOF, SAIO PONT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 21; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 21 N-00'2S'J3•-w, 640.90 
FEIT TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH MIIINTAINEO RIGHT·O�•WAY UNE OF FOREST lAKE ORJVE ACCORDING TO THE MIIP I\S RECORDED IN MAJ> BOOK 17, PAGES 
1()()-108,PUBllC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE ALONG $1110 SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF·WIIY LINE THE FOi.LOWiNG THREE (3} COURSES: tJ 
s-a9•49•04•. r, 95.08 FEET; THENCE 21 S-88'09'06"-£,  11.24 FEET; THENCE J) !i-89'58'57"-E, 160.16 FEET TO A POINT ON TlfE EAST LINE Of SAID TRACT 21; THENCf 
DEPARTING SAID MAINTAINED RIGHT-0,-w11v LINE, MIO AlONG TllE EAST LINE Of SAED TRACT 21 S-00'23'18"·[, 638.91 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER nlEREOF, I
SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORnlWfST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 27: THENCE AlONG TI-IE NORTH llNE OF SAID TRACT 27 S•lWS3'06·•e, 326.98 FEET TO THE 
NORTHfAST CORNER THEREOF; 1HENC£ ALONG THE MST LENE OF SAID TRACT 23 N-00·21•11·-w. 635.57 F(ET TO A POINT ON SAJD sourn MAINTAJNEO I
RIGIIT-Of-WAY LIN£ OF F011EST lAKE DRIVE; THENCE ALONG SAID souni MAINTAINED RIGITT-OF-WAYEUNE THE FOLLOWING lWO (2►ECOURSES: 1) S-89'36'39--E, 
187.39 FEEf: T"HENCE 2)S·89'59'30"·E, 139.69 FEET TO A POINT ON IHE EAST LINE OF SAIO TRACT H; rnrncE OEf'ARTING SAID SOUTii MIIINTAINEP RIGHT-OF-WAY 
UNE, AND AIONG lHE EAST UNE Of SAID TRACT 23 s-00•23'04•-E, 634.92 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORN(R TH[RfOf, 51\ID POINT AISO BEING THE NORTtlEA'IT 
CORNER Of SAID TRACT 26; THENCe AlONG THE EA'IT LINE OF SAEO TRACT Z6 s-00•22•59•,E, 63S.38 ff CT TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-Of.\VAY LINE OF NORTH I
BOULEVARD WEST PER O,R. 600K 781, PAGE 709 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COU"11Y, FlORIOA; THENCE AlONG SAID NORm RIGHr-OF WAY LINE PER O.R. 
BOOK 781, PAGE 709, ANO PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 667, ANO PER 0.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 696, ALL IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLIC COUNTY, f�ORIOA, 
N-89'48',t4•.w, 130S.66 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE Of SAIO TRACT 29; THENCE ALONG TII� WEST UNE OF SAID TPACT 29 N•oo·26'06"-C, 633.72 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY OESCRlBEOCONTAINS 28,581\CRft MORf OR lHS. 

/\NO 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IROr-1 ROD ANO CAP "LO sus· STANDING AT TIU SOUTHWEST CORNER. Of SAID TRACT 22, SAED POINT ALSO BW-IG THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF I
TRACT 27 OF SAID HOLL'!' HILL GROVE & FRUEl COMP/\NYSUOOIVISION, AND RUN ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 22 N·OO'l3'47"•W, 642.49 FEET TO THflE
INTERSECTION OF SAIO WEST UNE ANO TI1i: sourn MAINTAINED RIGHT-Of-WAY OF FOREST 1.1\KE DRIVE PER MAP BOOK 17. PAGE 100, PUBLIC RECOROS Of POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE ALONG S/110 SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT0-0F0WAYTHE FOLLOWING THRff (3) COURSES; 1) N--89'47'53"-£,  100,19 FEET; 2) THENCE 
S-89'09'22"-E, 206.27 FEET; THENCE 3} 5.g9•49• 49•,£, 20.44 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION 0� SAID SOVTI◄ MAINTAINED RIGHT·OF·\'IAY /\ND TIIE EAST UN£ OF SAID 
TRACT 22; TIIOICE ALONG SA10 EAST LINE S-00•22'4 l "·I:, 640.18 FEET TO /\ 5/8" I RON ROO ANO CAP 'LB 8135• STANDENG AT TIIE SOUTHEAST CORN ER OF SA ID IE
T/lAtf ��. �lo POENT Al.50 BEING lllE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 27; THENCE ALONG Tl-IE SOUTH UNE OF SAID TRI\Cf 22, Al.50 DEING lHE NORTH LINE IE
OF :.AIOTRACT 27, N·89'55'26"•W, 326.76fEET TO Ht[ POINT OF !)[GINNING. 

TIIE ABOVE DESCRIBED lANDS CONTAEN 4.82 ACRES, MORE on LESS. IE

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IRON ROO WITI◄ CAP "LB 8135' STANDING IITTHE INTERSECTION OF TI-IE WEST LINE OF SAID TllllCT 251\ND nlE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WIW OF NORTII 
BOUL.EVARO WEST PER OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 794, PAGE 787, PUBUC RECORDS OF POU< COUNTY, FLORIDA, ANO RUN ALONG SAID WEST UNE N-00·n·3a�-w, 
635.40 FUT TO A 5/8" IRON ROO AND CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT nlE NORTH\Vl:ST CORNER OF SAID TR/\CT 25, SAID POINT Al.50 BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 

10F SAIO TRACT 24: THENCE ALONG THF, WfST LINC OF SAJO TRACT 24 N-00'22'38"-W. 640.57 FEET 'tO A S/8' IRON ROO ANO C/1P "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE 
'INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST LINE ANO THE SOOTH MAJNTAINEO RIGHT-OF-WAY OF rOJtEST lAKE DRIVE PER MAP BOOK 11. PAGE 100, PUBLIC RECORDS Of POLI( 
COUNTY, FLORIDA: rnENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING EIGHT (8) COURSES; 1) N-89.47'20"-[, l�-81 FEET; THENCE 
2JS•89'23'34"•E, 56.51 FEET; THENCE 3) 5·84'02'1S"·E, 28.73 FEET: THENCE (4) S-69'03'E33"-E, 26.63 FEET; THENCE (5JS•S9•1a·o2·-E, 25.17 F(CT; TttENCE (6) 
S·40'32'S3"·E, 25.66 fEEl; THENCE P) S-22'0)'31"-E, 27.32 fEIT; ll1ENC[ (8)S-oroo·ss·-E. 14.43 FEET TO THE [AST UNE Of SAID TRACT 24: THENCE Al.ONG SAID 
EAST LINE 5·00'19'41"-E, 556.53 FEET TO A 5/lf' IRON ROD AND CAP "LO 8135" STANDING 111 me SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAIi) TRACT M, SAID POINT ALSO BE.1NG 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OJ' S/110 TRACT 25; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 25 s-oo·19'41"•£, 636.04 FEtr ro HIE NORTH RIGHT•OF-WAY Of NORTH 
BOULEVARD WEST PER OFFIClAl 11ECORDS BOOK 79•, PAGE 787, PUBUC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FlORIDA; THENCE /\LONG SAIO NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
N ·89'48'36"•W, 324.S7 FEETlO THE l'OINTOF DEGINNINO. 

Ill( ABOVE OESCRIIJEO LANDS CONTAIN 9.48 ACRES. MORE OR LESS. 

12 



0 
EXHI Bl T "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS,ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

TRACT 14 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 05, TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST. 
POLK COUNTY. FLORIDA. OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT: ACCORDING TO THE MAP:O
OR PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGES 60-63. PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

. AND 

TRACT 13 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 05, TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH. RANGE 27 EAST. 
POLK COUNTY. FLORIDA. OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT,M ACCORDING TO THE MAP 
OR PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGES 60-63, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND 

TRACT 12 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¾ OF SECTION 05, TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH. RANGE 27 EAST. 

POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, OF "FLORIDA DEVE.LOPMENT CO. TRACT," ACCORDING TO THE MAP:O
OR PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3. PAGES 60-63. PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

All ALSO BEING DESCRIBED A.S 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO TDENTJFICATION) STANDING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
SAID TRACT 12. AND RUN THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF S-00°29'07"-E, 64O1.93 
FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO IDENTIFICATION) STANDING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
SAID TRACT 12; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH UNE OF SAID TRACTS 12, 13 AND 14 
N-89°38' 18"-W, 992.51 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO IDENTIFICATION) STANDING AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER Of SAID TRACT 1 4; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE THEREOF 
N•00"28'48"•W, 640.28 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO IDENTIFICATION) STANDING AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 1 4; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE Of SAID TRACTS 
12, 13, AND 14 S-89°44'01"-E, 992.43 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 

PROPERTI DESCRIBED CONTAINING 14.61 ACRES, 1-tORE OR LESS. 

13 



0 
EXHI Bl T "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS,ASSESSMENT AREA 3 and ASSESSMENT AREA 4 

ASSESSMENT AREA 4 (continued) 

TRACT 2 1  AND 22 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION OS. TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH, RANGE 27 

EAST, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT," ACCORDING TO THEI
MAP OR PLAT THEREOF. AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3. PAGES 60-63. PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
POLK COUNTI. FLORIDA. 

AND 

TRACT 23 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION OS. TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH. RANGE 27 EAST. POLKIO
COUt-fTY, FLORIDA. OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT.» ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT 
THEREOF, AS RECORDED lN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGES 60·63, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTI, 
FLORIDA. 

AND 

TRACT 24 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SE.CTION 05. TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH. RANGE 27 EAST. POLK 

COUNTY. FLORIDA. OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT.u ACCORDlNG TO THE MAP OR PLAT 
THEREOF. AS RECORDED IN BOOK 3, PAGES 60-63. PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY. FLORIDA, 
LESS THE SOUTH 114 FEET THEREOF. AND LESS l"HE EAST 25 FEET THEREOF FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
PER OFFIOAL RECORDS BOOK 781. PAGE 721. PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA.!O

AND 

THE SOUTH 1 14 FEET OF TRACT 24 IN THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 05. TOWNSHIP 27 
SOU11i. RANGE 27 EAST, POLK COUNTY. FLORIDA. OF "FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. 
TRACT," ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGES 
60-63, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLI( COUNTY, FLORIDA, LESS THE EAST 25 FEET THEREOF FOR 
RIGHT-OF-WAY PER OFFIC[AL RECORDS BOOK 781. PAGE 721, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUt-fTY. FLORIDA. 

ALL ALSO BEING DESCRIBED AS. 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO IDEN'TIFICATIONI STANDING .AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID TRACT 21. ANO RUN THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACTS 2 1-24. 
S-89·38'18"·E. 1298.35 FEET TO A 5/8" [RON ROD (NO IDENTIFICAT[O,Nl STAND[NG AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF SAID NORTH LINE AIND THE WEST RIGHIT-OF•WAY OF HOLLY HILL ROAD PER 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 781, PAGE 721 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY, S-00°29'26"-E, 643.54 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION 
OF SAID WEST RIGt-lT-OF-WAY AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID i1RACT 24; THENCE ALONG THE 
SOUTli LINE OF SAID TRACTS 2O1-24 N-89°32'35"-W, 1298.46 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD (NO 
IDENTIFICATION) STANDING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 2 1; THENCE ALONGIO
THE WEST UNE THEREOF N-00•29'00"-W. 641.38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY DESCRIBED CONTAINING 19.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 



No. R-2 $ 5 1 2,655 .49 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(CITY OF DAVENPORT, FLORIDA) 

AMENDED BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2018 
(AMENITY CENTER LINE OF CREDIT) 

Interest Dated Maturity 
Rate Date Date 

5 . 50% October _, 20 1 8  June 30 ,  202 1 

Registered Owner: HHR EAST, LLC 

Principal Amount: FIVE HUNDRED TWELVE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE 
DOLLARS AND FORTY-NINE CENTS 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
community development district duly created and existing pursuant to Chapter 1 90, Florida 
Statutes (the "District"), which shall also serve as Registrar and Paying Agent, for value received, 
hereby promises to pay (but only out of the sources hereinafter mentioned) to the registered Owner 
set forth above, on the Maturity Date set forth above, the principal amount shown above, or so 
much thereof as shall be outstanding on the Maturity Date, and to pay (but only out of the sources 
hereinafter mentioned) interest on the outstanding principal amount hereof from the date of each 
advance to the Maturity Date set forth above or earlier Redemption Date (hereinafter defined), at 
the rate per annum set forth above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Maturity Date is not a 
Business Day (hereinafter defined), then all amounts due on the Maturity Date shall be payable on 
the first Business Day succeeding such Maturity Date, but shall be deemed paid on the Maturity 
Date . The term "Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or other day 
on which banking institutions in the City in which the Registered Owner is located are authorized 
or obligated to be closed. The payment of principal at maturity or Redemption Price, together with 
interest accrued thereon, shall be made by the District acting through its District Manager, as 
Registrar and Paying Agent only upon presentation and surrender hereof at the designated office 
of the Paying Agent, to the Registered Owner at the address set forth on the registration books 
maintained by the Registrar at least five (5) days prior to the date of such payment. Interest on 
this Note will be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a 360-day year, 
compounded annually, and payable at maturity or upon earlier redemption. 

This Note is issued pursuant to Resolution No. 20 1 9-0 1 of the Board of Supervisors of the 
District, adopted on October 1 1 , 20 1 8 , as amended by Resolution No. 2020-_ of the Board of 
Supervisors of the District, adopted on May 20, 2020 (collectively, the "Note Resolution") and the 
provisions of Chapters 1 90 and Section 2 1 5 .43 1 ,  Florida Statutes, for the purpose of paying all or 
a portion of the costs of constructing and acquiring certain assessable improvements constituting 

Page 1 of 4 

https://512,655.49


a portion of the Amenity Center (as defined in the Note Resolution). By the acceptance of this 
Note, the Registered Owner hereof assents to all of the provisions of the Note Resolution. 

THE NOTE IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT PAYABLE SOLELY 
AS PROVIDED HEREIN AND NEITHER THE PROPERTY, THE FULL FAITH AND 

CREDIT, NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE DISTRICT, THE CITY OF DAVENPORT 
(THE "CITY"), POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA (THE "COUNTY"), THE ST ATE OF FLORIDA 
(THE "STATE"), OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, IS PLEDGED AS 

SECURITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE NOTE. THIS NOTE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 
AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT, THE CITY, THE COUNTY, THE STATE, OR ANY 
OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY 

CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY PROVISION OR LIMITATION, EXCEPT THAT THE 
DISTRICT HAS DECLARED, LEVIED, EVIDENCED AND CERTIFIED FOR COLLECTION, 
NON-AD V ALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ("NOTE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS") TO 

SECURE AND PAY THE NOTE. SUCH NOTE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE 
LEVIED ON LANDS IN PHASE 3 AND PHASE 4 ASSESSMENT AREAS ON A PARITY 
WITH OTHER NON-AD V ALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS LEVIED FOR OTHER 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE PHASE 4 ASSESSMENT AREA, BUT THE 
LIEN OF SUCH NOTE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE SUBJECT AND 
SUBORDINATE TO THE LIEN SECURING OTHER NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENTS LEVIED FOR INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE PHASE 3 
ASSESSMENT AREA. THIS NOTE SHALL BE SUBJECT TO MANDATORY REDEMPTION 
IN WHOLE OR IN PART AT ANY TIME FROM PREPAYMENTS OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

ASSESSMENTS BY LANDOWNERS UPON THE SALE OF LOTS TO HOME BUILDERS. 
THIS NOTE SHALL ALSO BE SUBJECT TO MANDATORY REDEMPTION IN PART UPON 
THE ISSUANCE OF PERMANENT INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS SECURED BY SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENTS ON LANDS IN THE PHASE 4 ASSESSMENT AREA. 

This Note is issuable only as a single registered note in current interest bearing certificated 

form, in the denomination of the maximum principal amount of the Loan. This Note may not be 
sold, assigned or transferred in any manner. 

All payments received hereunder shall be applied first to the payment of interest due and 
payable, with the balance applied to principal. All accrued and unpaid interest and outstanding 
principal shall be paid in full on June 30, 202 1 .  

This Note is subject to redemption in whole or in part prior to maturity as provided above, 
in whole or in part on any date selected by the District ("Redemption Date"), upon 10 days' prior 

notice to the Registered Owner of the Note, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount 
being prepaid plus interest accrued thereon to the Redemption Date calculated from the date of 
each advance ("Redemption Price"). On the date designated for redemption, notice having been 

given and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being held by the District, this Note 
shall become and be due and payable at the Redemption Price and interest hereon shall cease to 
accrue and the Owner hereof shall have no rights in respect of this Note except to receive payment 

of the Redemption Price thereof so held by the District. The failure of the District to give the 
notice hereinabove provided, or any defect therein, shall not in any manner defeat the effectiveness 

Page 2 of 4 



of a call for redemption if notice thereof is actually given to the Owner thereof and such Note is 
presented for redemption as aforesaid. 

This Note shall have all the qualities and incidents, including negotiability, of investment 
securities within the meaning and for all the purposes of the Uniform Commercial Code of the 

State of Florida. 

This Note is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Florida shall govern its 

construction. 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required by 

the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida and the resolution of the District to happen, exist 
and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note, have happened, exist and have 
been performed as so required. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

Page 3 of 4 



-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Holly Hill Road East Community Development District, has 
caused this Note to bear the signature ofthe Chairman of its Board of Supervisors and the official 

seal of the District to be hereon and attested by the signature of the Secretary to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

[SEAL] HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNIT) 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Attest: 
By: - - - - - - - - - - 

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

By: - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -
Secretary, Board of Supervisors 

Page 4 of 4 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2020-1 1 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-11 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 
ADOPTED OCTOBER 11, 2018 ENTITLED: 

"A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF A HOLLY HILL 
ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (CITY OF DAVENPORT, FLORIDA) 

BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2018 
(AMENITY CENTER LINE OF CREDIT), IN A 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$550,000, TO PROVIDE INTERIM FUNDS FOR 
THE PAYMENT OF A PORTION OF THE COSTS 
OF THE ACQUISITION OF AN AMENITY 

CENTER TO SERVE RESIDENTS OF THE 
DISTRICT AND OF THE NORTH BOULEVARD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; 

APPROVING THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT 
NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE NOTE, 
APPOINTING A PAYING AGENT AND 

REGISTRAR FOR THE NOTE; CREATING A 
NOTE REDEMPTION ACCOUNT; PROVIDING 
FOR INCIDENTAL ACTION; AND PROVIDING 

FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE"; 

EXTENDING THE MATURITY DATE OF SUCH NOTE; 

PROVIDING ADDITIONAL SECURITY FOR SUCH NOTE; 
PROVIDING FOR PREPAYMENT OF SUCH NOTE UPON 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR INCIDENT AL 

ACTION; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Holly Hill Road East Community Development District (the "District") is a 
local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing in accordance with the Uniform 
Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the 

"Act"), and Ordinance No. 814 enacted by the City Commission (the "City Commission") of the 
City of Davenport, Florida (the "City") on July 10, 20 17, as amended by Ordinance No. 841 
enacted by the City Commission on March 5, 20 18; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-01 adopted by the Board of Supervisors of 
the District on October 1 1 , 20 18  (the "Prior Resolution"), the District issued its Bond 

Anticipation Note, Series 2018 (Amenity Center Line of Credit) (the "Note"), on or about 
October 24, 2018 in an amount not to exceed $550,000 to HHR East, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company (the "Lender"); and 

WHEREAS, terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set 
forth in the Prior Resolution 



WHEREAS, the Lender has advanced sums totaling $5 12,655.49 on behalf of the 
District to fund a portion of the costs of the Amenity Center, of which $287,973. 1 5  is allocable 

to the Phase 3 Assessment Area (Citrus Landing) and $224,682.34 is allocable to the Phase 4 
Assessment Area (Citrus Reserve); and 

WHEREAS, such amounts, plus accrued interest at the annual rate of 5 .50% from the 
date of each advance as evidenced by the Note, were intended to be paid from the proceeds of 
the first issuance of Special Assessment Bonds by the District for each Assessment Area; and 

WHEREAS, the timing and amounts of issuance of Special Assessment Bonds for Phase 
3 and 4 Assessment Areas are uncertain, and consequently the District wishes to extend the 

maturity date of the Note from December 5, 2020 to June 30, 202 1 ;  and 

WHEREAS, to secure repayment of the Note at or prior to maturity, the District intends 

to commence assessment proceedings on the date hereof to authorize the imposition, levy and 
collection of non-ad valorem special assessments pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida 
Statutes ("Note Special Assessments"), on benefited lands within the Phase 3 and 4 Assessment 

Areas; and 

WHEREAS, such Note Special Assessments within the Phase 3 Assessment Area are to 

be due and payable on each lot at the time such lot is sold to a homebuilder, but in no event later 
than the maturity date of the Note; and 

WHEREAS, the lien of the Note Special Assessments within the Phase 3 Assessment 
Area is to be subject and subordinate to the lien of non-ad valorem special assessments to be 
levied pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Resolutions 20 19-09 and 2020-07 

dated February 20, 20 19 and March 18, 2020 (the "Bond Assessment Lien") as security for the 
Special Assessment Bonds to be issued to finance infrastructure improvements in the Phase 3 
Assessment Area; 

WHEREAS, such Amenity Special Assessments within the Phase 4 Assessment Area are 
to be due and payable on each lot at the time the first series of Special Assessment Bonds shall 

be issued to finance infrastructure improvements in the Phase 4 Assessment Area, but in no event 
later than the maturity date of the Note; and 

WHEREAS, the lien of the Note Special Assessments within the Phase 4 Assessment 
Area shall be on a parity with the Bond Assessment Lien as security for the Special Assessment 
Bonds to be issued to finance infrastructure improvements in the Phase 4 Assessment Area; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

Section 1 :  Amendment of Note. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the 
"Board") hereby authorizes the amendment of its outstanding Bond Anticipation Note (Amenity 
Center Line of Credit) (the "Note"), the principal balance of which is $512,655.49, maturing 

December 5, 2020, registered in the name of the Lender, bearing interest at the annual rate of 
5 .50%, all as provided in the Prior Resolution and in the Note. There is hereby authorized the 
execution and delivery of an amended Note (the "Amended Note") substantially in the form of 

"Exhibit "A" attached hereto, which form is hereby approved, subject to such changes, 

2 

https://512,655.49
https://224,682.34
https://287,973.15
https://512,655.49


additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the Chairman or Designated Member 
and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced by 

the execution thereof. 

Section 2:  Negotiated Exchange of Amended Note. The Amended Note shall be 

issued and delivered to the Lender in exchange for the outstanding Note, which upon receipt by 
the District, shall be canceled. The Board hereby authorizes and directs the Chairman or the 
Chairman's designee (the "Designated Member") to take all action necessary to consummate 

such exchange, upon approval by the District Manager and consultants. The Amended Note 
shall not be sold, assigned or transferred in any manner. 

The actions of the District and its officers and consultants previously taken regarding the 
modification of the Loan and exchange of the Amended Note for the Note are hereby ratified and 
confirmed and the District and its officers and consultants are hereby authorized and directed to 

take such further action as the District or its officers or consultants deem necessary or desirable 
to effect the purposes of the Loan. 

Section 3:  Execution of Amended Note. The Amended Note shall be executed with 
the manual signature of the Chairman or a Designated Member of the Board and countersigned 
by the manual signature of the Secretary of the Board and the seal of the District shall be 

imprinted or impressed or reproduced by facsimile thereon. 

Section 4: Security and Source of Payment of Amended Note. The principal of 

and interest on the Amended Note shall be payable solely from, and shall be secured solely by, 
(i) the proceeds of collection of Note Special Assessments levied on lands within the Phase 3 
Assessment Area, due and payable upon the earlier of the sale of such lands to home builders or 

the Maturity Date of the Amended Note, provided, however, that the lien of such Note Special 
Assessments is subject and subordinate to the Bond Assessment Lien on the Phase 3 Assessment 
Area securing Special Assessment Bonds, and (ii) the proceeds of collection of Note Special 

Assessments levied on lands within the Phase 4 Assessment Area, on a parity with the Bond 
Assessment Lien, due and payable upon the earlier of the issuance of Special Assessment Bonds 
for the Phase 4 Assessment Area or the sale of lands within the Phase 4 Assessment Area to 

home builders, but no later than the Maturity Date of the Amended Note. 

The District hereby agrees to take such actions as are necessary to repay the Amended 

Note, including without limitation, the issuance of Special Assessment Bonds and the levy and 
collection of Note Special Assessments in the manner and to the extent described herein. The 
District covenants and agrees that the assessment proceedings under which the Note Special 

Assessments shall be authorized and approved, shall provide for levy and collection of all 
amounts due with respect to the Amended Note. 

Section 5: Prior Resolution. Except as modified hereby, the provisions of the Prior 
Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 6: Other Actions. The Chairman, a Designated Member, the Secretary and 
all other employees and consultants of the Board and the District are hereby authorized and 
directed to take all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and delivery of 

3 



the Amended Note and the modification of the Loan and all transactions in connection therewith, 
including the execution of all necessary or desirable certificates, documents, papers, and 

agreements and the undertaking and fulfillment of all transactions referred to in or contemplated 
by this Resolution. 

Section 7:  Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution or of 
the amended Note herein authorized shall for any reason be held illegal or invalid, such illegality 
or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Resolution or of the amended Note, but 

this Resolution and the Amended Note shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or 
invalid provision had not been contained therein. 

Section 8: Open Meetings. It is hereby found and determined that all official acts of 
the District concerning and relating to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Note, including but 
not limited to adoption of this Resolution by the Board, were taken in open meetings of the 

members of the Board and all deliberations of the members of the Board that resulted in such 
official acts were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements 
including, but not limited to, the requirements of Florida Statutes, Section 286.0 1 1  

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

4 



Section 9 :  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

PASSED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District, this 20th day of May, 2020. 

Attest : HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

Secretary, Board of Supervisors Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF THE NOTE 

A- 1 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

US Bank Trustee Fee Proposal 



From: Audette, James J <james.audette@usbank.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 1 3, 2020 9:43 AM 
To: Jane Gaarlandt <gaarlandtj@pfm .com> 
Subject: RE:  Fee Structure for Holly Hill COD Supplemental 3 and Supplemental 4 

EXTERNAL EMAIL :  Use care with l inks and attachments. 

Good Morning Jane, 

That would be great I have included the fo llowing: 

Assessment Area 3 Annual Fee $3,750.00 
Acceptance Fee (One Time) $1 , 1 50.00 

Assessment Area 4 Annual Fee $2,750.00 
Acceptance Fee (One Time) $1 , 1 50.00 

Trustee Counsel Doug Darbut $5,750.00 

James J. Audette 

Vice President I Relationship Manager 

p. 407.835.3820 I james.audette@usbank.com 

U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust 

225 E Robinson Street, Suite 250 

Orlando, FL 32801 I EX-FL-UORT I www.usbank.com 

For security reasons, U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust requests that if customer confidential information is included in your email, 

please utilize the Cisco Registered Envelope Services (CRES) Secure Mail system if sending customer confidential information to 

U.S. Bank.https://www.usbank.com/securemail 

mailto:james.audette@usbank.com
http://www.usbank.com/
https://www.usbank.com/securemail
https://5,750.00
https://1,150.00
https://2,750.00
https://1,150.00
https://3,750.00
mailto:gaarlandtj@pfm.com
mailto:james.audette@usbank.com


Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Other Matters 

(provided under separate cover) 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2020-1  2 



RFBOLUTION 2020- 12 

A RF.SOLUTION OF 1HE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 1HE HOLLY IDLL 
ROAD EAST COMMUNI1Y DEVELOPMENT DIS1RICT APPROVING 
PROPOSED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 ;  DECLARING SPECIAL 
ASSFBSMENTS TO FUND 1HE PROPOSED BUDGETS PURSUANT TO 
CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTFB; SETTING PUBLIC 
HEARINGS; ADDRF.SSING PUBLICATION; ADDRFBSING SEVERABILI1Y ;  
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DA TE. 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors ("Board") of the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District ("District") prnr to 
June 1 5 ,  2020, proposed budgets ("Proposed Budget") for the fiscal year beginning October 1 ,  2020 and 
ending September 30,  202 1 ("Fiscal Year 2020/2021") ;  and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District to fund the administrative and operations 
services (together, "Services") set forth in the Proposed Budget by levy of spec ial as sessments pursuant to 
Chapters 1 70, 1 90 and 1 97, Florida Statutes ("Assessments") , as set forth in the preliminary as sessment 
roll inc luded within the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits would accrue to the properties within the 
District, as outlined within the Proposed Budget, in an amount equal to or in excess of the Assessments, 
and that such Assessments would be fairly and reasonably allocated as set forth in the Proposed Budget; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget, inc luding the Assessments, and 
des ires to set the required public hearings thereon; 

NOW, TIIEREFORE, BE IT RF.SOLVED BY 1HE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
1HE HOLLY IDLL ROAD EAST COMMUNI1Y DEVELOPMENT DIS1RICT: 

1 .  PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED. The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 
Manager for Fiscal Year 2020/202 1 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the bas is for 
conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget. 

2. DECLARING ASSFBSMENTS. Pursuant to Chapters 1 70, 1 90 and 1 97, Florida 
Statutes ,  the Asses sments shall defray the cost of the Services in the total estimated amounts set forth in the 
Proposed Budget. The nature of, and plans and specifications for, the Services to be funded by the 
Assessments are described in the Proposed Budget and in the reports (if any) of the District Engineer, all 
of which are on file and available for public inspection at the "District ' s  Office ,"  c/o PFM Group 
Consulting LLC, 1 205 1 Corporate Blvd. , Orlando, Florida 328 17 .  The Assessments shall be levied within 

the District on all benefitted lots and lands ,  and shall be apportioned, all as described in the Proposed Budget 
and the preliminary as sessment roll inc luded therein. The preliminary as sessment roll is also on file and 
available for public inspection at the District ' s Office.  The Assessments shall be paid in one more 
installment pursuant to a bill is sued by the District in November of 2020, and pursuant to Chapter 1 70, 
Florida Statutes ,  or, alternatively, pursuant to the Uniform Method as set forth in Chapter 1 97, Florida 
Statutes .  

3 .  SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing on the adoption o f  the Proposed 
Budget and the impos ition of spec ial as sessments is hereby dec lared and set for July 22, 2020 at __ 

.m .  at the following location: 



------------

LOCATION: 

Currently there is in place federa� state , and local emergency declarations ("Declarations") . In the 

event the Declarations remain in effect and if future orders or declarations so authorize , the meeting 
may be conducted remotely, using communications media technology pursuant to Executive 

Orders 20-52 and 20-69 issued by Governor DeSantis on March 9, 2020, and March 20, 2020, as 

such orders may be extended, respectively, and pursuant to Section 120. 54(5)(b)2. , Florida 

Statutes .  Information regarding participation in any remote hearing may be found at the District' s 
website hollyhillroadeast.com or by contacting the District Manager at 407-723-5900. 

Anyone wishing to participate in the meeting telephonically on the above date and time must call 

_______ and when prompted, enter meeting ID : ___. Additional information 

regarding this meeting may be obtained from the District' s website hollyhillroadeast. com or by 

contacting the District Manager, Jane Gaarlandt, at gaarlandtj@pfm.com or by calling 407-723 -

5900. 

4. 1RANSMITIAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 
GOVERNMENTS. The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of  the Proposed Budget to 
the City of Davenport and Polk County at least 60 days prior to the hearing set above. 

5. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET. In accordance w ith Section 1 89 . 0 1 6, Florida 

Statutes, the District' s Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget on the District's 
website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 3 ,  and shall remain on the 
website for at least 45 days .  

6. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE. The District shall cause this Resolution to  be published 
once a week for a period of two weeks in a newspaper of general c irculation published in Polk County. 
Additionally, notice of the public hearings shall also be mailed to each property owner in the manner 
prescribed in Florida law . 

7. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provis ions of 
this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution, 
or any part thereof. 

8. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED 1HIS 2orn DAY OF MAY, 2020. 

ATTEST :  HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIS1RICT 

By: _______ _ 
Secretary Its : 

mailto:gaarlandtj@pfm.com
https://hollyhillroadeast.com
https://hollyhillroadeast.com


Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

FY 202 1 Proposed O&M Budget 

Actual Through 
03/3 1 /2020 

Year To Date 

Anticipated 
Mar. - Sep. 

Anticipated 
Total FY 2020 

FY 2020 
Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2021 
Proposed 

Budget 

Revenues 
On-Rol l  Assessments 
Off-Rol l  Assessments 
Other I ncome & Other F inancing Sou rces 
I nter-Governmental Revenue (North B lvd CDD) 

$ 2 1  1 ,808.40 
42,695.63 

40.00 
1 2 ,258 .34 

$ 1 , 847 . 5 1  
1 4 ,232.43 

26 ,271  . 1 4  

$ 2 1  3,655 .9 1  
56 ,928 .06 

40 .00 
38 ,529.48 

$ 2 1  3,655 .9 1  
56 ,928 .06 

38 ,529.48 

$ 302 ,576.57 

38 ,529.48 

Net Revenues $ 266,802.37 $ 42,351  .08 $ 309,1  53.45 $ 309, 1  1 3.45 $ 341 , 1  06.05 

General & Admin istrative Exeenses 
Supervisor Fees $ 2 , 800 .00 $ 6 ,000 .00 $ 8 ,800 .00 $ 1 2 ,000.00 $ 1 2 ,000.00 
D&O Insurance 2 , 306.00 2 , 306.00 2 ,475 .00 2 ,475 .00 
Trustee Services 7 ,084 .57 7 ,084.57 6 ,000 .00 1 0 ,000.00 
Management 1 0 ,000 .02 9 ,999 .98 20 ,000 .00 20 ,000 .00 30 ,000.00 
Field Management 238. 1 6  4 ,761  .84 5 ,000 .00 5 ,000 .00 5 ,000 .00 
Eng ineering 2 , 755 .00 2 , 755 .00 5 , 5 1  0 .00 1 5 ,000.00 1 5 ,000.00 
Dissemination Agent 6 ,500 .00 6 ,500 .00 5 ,000 .00 6 ,500 .00 
District Counsel 1 1  ,579 .8 1  1 1  ,579 .8 1  23 , 1  59.62 20 ,000 .00 20 ,000 .00 
Assessment Admin istrat ion 1 2 ,500.00 1 2 ,500.00 1 2 ,500.00 20 ,000 .00 
Reamortization Schedu les 500.00 500.00 500.00 750.00 
Audit  6 ,000 .00 6 ,000 .00 6 ,000 .00 7 ,000 .00 
Travel and Per Diem 30.48 30.48 60.96 500.00 500.00 
Telephone 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 
Postage & Sh ipp ing 2 1 4 .39 2 1 4 .39 428.78 325.00 325.00 
Copies 55.20 55 .20 1 1  0.40 1 , 700.00 1 , 700 .00 
Legal  Advertis ing 1 , 803.56 1 , 803.56 3 ,607 . 1 2  5 ,000 .00 5 ,000 .00 
M iscel laneous 985.02 985 . 02 1 , 970 .04 1 9 , 1  1 6 .60 1 9 , 1  1 6 .60 
Property Taxes 75 .00 75 .00 
Web S ite Ma intenance 750.00 1 , 950.00 2 , 700 .00 2 , 700 .00 2 , 700 .00 
Dues, L icenses, and Fees 

Total General  & Admin istrative Expenses $ 59,777.21 $ 46,835.28 $ 1 06,61 2.49 $ 1 34,266.60 $ 1 58,51 6.60 

1 75 .00 1 75 .00 1 75 .00 1 75 .00 

Page 1 of 2 



Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

FY 202 1 Proposed O&M Budget 

Year To Date 
FY 2020 FY 2021 Actual Through Anticipated Anticipated Adopted Proposed 03/3 1 /2020 Mar. - Sep. Total FY 2020 Budget Budget 

Field Expenses 
Genera l  I nsurance (Phase 1 )  $ 2 , 958 .00 $ $ 2 , 958 .00 $ 3 ,025 .00 $ 3 ,025 .00 
Genera l  I nsurance (Phase 2)  1 ,482 .84 1 ,482 .84 
I rr igation (Phase 1 )  1 8 1 .72 5 1 8 .28 700 .00 700 .00 700 .00 
I rr igation (Phase 2)  343 . 1 4  343 . 1 4  343 . 1 4  343 . 1 4  
I rr igation Repai rs (Phase 1 )  2 , 966.32 2 , 966.32 5 ,932 .64 2 ,400 .00 2 ,400 .00 
I rr igation Repai rs (Phase 2) 1 , 1 76 .47 1 , 1 76 .47 1 , 1 76 .47 1 , 1 76 .47 
Landscaping Maintenance & Material (Phase 1 )  6 ,996.00 6 ,996.00 1 3 ,992.00 1 6 ,392.00 1 3 ,992.00 
Landscaping Maintenance & Material (Phase 2) 1 0 ,000.00 6 ,000 .00 1 6 ,000.00 1 2 ,000.00 1 2 ,000.00 
Flower & Plant Replacement (Phase 1 )  5 , 500 .00 5 ,500 .00 5 ,500 .00 5 ,500 .00 
Flower & Plant Replacement (Phase 2) 2 ,696.08 2 ,696.08 2 ,696.08 2 ,696.08 
Fert i l izer  / Pesticides (Phase 1 )  2 , 500 .00 2 , 500 .00 2 , 500 .00 2 , 500 .00 
Fert i l izer  / Pesticides (Phase 2) 1 ,225.49 1 ,225.49 1 ,225.49 1 ,225.49 
Cont ingency (Phase 1 )  3 ,436.20 3 ,208.47 6 ,644.67 5,436.00 5,436.00 
Cont ingency (Phase 2) 2 ,664 .7 1  2 ,664 .7 1  2 ,664 .7 1  2 ,664 .7 1  
Storm Damage 3 ,000 .00 3 ,000 .00 3 ,000 .00 3 ,000 .00 
Street l ig hts (Phase 1 )  4 ,629 .27 4 ,370 .73 9 ,000 .00 9 ,000 .00 9 ,000 .00 
Street l ig hts (Phase 2) 4 ,4 1  1 . 76 4 ,4 1  1 .76 4 ,4 1  1 .76 4 ,4 1  1 .76 

Total Field Expenses $ 31  , 1 67.51 $ 47,577.45 $ 78,744.96 $ 73,953.49 $ 71  ,553.49 

Cabana & Pool Expenses 
Secu rity $ $ 7 ,000 .00 $ 7 ,000 .00 $ 7 ,000 .00 $ 5 ,000 .00 
Maintenance Staff 4 ,845 .00 4 ,845 .00 9 ,690 .00 4 ,375 .00 4 ,375 .00 
E lectric 7 ,68 1  .39 1 7 , 3 1  8 .6 1  25 ,000 .00 25 ,000 .00 25 ,000 .00 
Amen ity Landscaping 1 3 ,000.00 9 ,000 .00 22 ,000 .00 1 2 ,000.00 1 2 ,000.00 
Cable Televis ion 629 .8 1  629 .8 1  1 ,259.62 525.00 525.00 
Property & Casua lty 9 ,357 .00 9 ,357 .00 6 ,328 .00 1 0 ,000.00 
Equ ipment Repair  & Maintenance 2 , 042 .00 2 , 042 .00 2 , 042 .00 2 , 042 .00 
Pest Control 288.90 288.90 577.80 660.00 828.00 
S ignage & Amen ities Repa i r  750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 
Swimming Pools Ma intenance 1 0 ,827.40 1 0 ,827.40 2 1 ,654 .80 23 ,000 .00 1 8 ,644 .76 
Playg round Lease 1 2 ,091 . 32 1 3 ,021 . 1 4  25 , 1 1 2 .46 1 9 , 7 1 3 .36 32 ,37 1 .20 

Total Cabana & Pool Expenses $ 58,720.82 $ 65,722.86 $ 1 24,443.68 $ 1 01 ,393.36 $ 1 1 1  ,535.96 

Total Expenses $ 1 49 665.54 
1 $ 1 60 1 35.59 

1 $ 309 801  . 1 3  
1 $ 309 61  3.45 

1 $ 341 606.05
1

Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains (Losses) 

I nterest I ncome $ 323.84 $ 323 .84 $ 647.68 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 

Total Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains $ 323.84 $ 323.84 $ 647.68 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 
(Losses) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 1 1  7,460.67 $ (1  1 7,460.67) $ $ $ 

Page 2 of 2 

https://32,371.20
https://19,713.36
https://25,112.46
https://13,021.14
https://12,091.32
https://18,644.76
https://23,000.00
https://21,654.80
https://10,827.40
https://10,827.40
https://2,042.00
https://2,042.00
https://2,042.00
https://2,042.00
https://10,000.00
https://6,328.00
https://9,357.00
https://9,357.00
https://1,259.62
https://12,000.00
https://12,000.00
https://22,000.00
https://9,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://4,375.00
https://4,375.00
https://9,690.00
https://4,845.00
https://4,845.00
https://5,000.00
https://7,000.00
https://7,000.00
https://7,000.00
https://73,953.49
https://78,744.96
https://47,577.45
https://9,000.00
https://9,000.00
https://9,000.00
https://4,370.73
https://4,629.27
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://2,664.71
https://2,664.71
https://2,664.71
https://2,664.71
https://5,436.00
https://5,436.00
https://6,644.67
https://3,208.47
https://3,436.20
https://1,225.49
https://1,225.49
https://1,225.49
https://1,225.49
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,696.08
https://2,696.08
https://2,696.08
https://2,696.08
https://5,500.00
https://5,500.00
https://5,500.00
https://5,500.00
https://12,000.00
https://12,000.00
https://16,000.00
https://6,000.00
https://10,000.00
https://13,992.00
https://16,392.00
https://13,992.00
https://6,996.00
https://6,996.00
https://1,176.47
https://1,176.47
https://1,176.47
https://1,176.47
https://2,400.00
https://2,400.00
https://5,932.64
https://2,966.32
https://2,966.32
https://1,482.84
https://1,482.84
https://3,025.00
https://3,025.00
https://2,958.00
https://2,958.00


Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 
FY 202 1 Proposed Debt Service Budgets 

Proposed Series Proposed Series 
201  7 FY 202 1 201  8 FY 202 1 

Budget Budget 

REVENUES :  

Specia l  Assessments $ 3 1  5 ,048 .75 $ 1 67 ,343 .75 

TOTAL REVE N U ES $ 31  5 ,048 .75 $ 1 67 ,343. 75 

EXPEND ITURES:  

I nterest 1 1 /0 1 /2020 $ 84 ,053 .75 $ 45,993 .75 

Principal 05/0 1 /202 1 65,000.00 30,000.00 

I nterest 05/0 1 /202 1 84 ,053 .75 45,993 .75 

TOTAL EXPEND ITURES $ 233 , 1 07 .50 $ 1 2 1  ,987 .50 

EXCESS REVENUES $ 8 1  , 941  .25 $ 45,356.25 

I nterest 1 1 /0 1 /202 1 $ 8 1  , 94 1  .25 $ 45,356.25 

Page 1 of 1 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Proposals for Dissemination Services 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

PFM 



0 

pfm 
1 20 5 1  Co rpo rate B11.d. 
Orl a n d o ,  FL 328 1  7 
407 .  723 . 5900 

pfm .com 

Apri l 8 ,  2020 

Holly H i l l  Road East CDD 
1 2051 Corporate Blvd . 
Orlando, F L  3281 7 

Re: D issemination Agent Proposal 

Dear Board Members: 

As provided in the scope of serv ices of the current D istrict Management Ag reement dated January 1 6 , 

201 9 (the "Ag reemenf' ) , ,  PFM Group Consu lting LLC ( "PFM" ) , offers continu ing d isclosu re serv ices. 
At th is time ,  the Holly H i l l  Road East CDD ( "D istrict'') cu rrenfly has those serv ices provided by another 
vendor . Th is document serves as PF M 's proposal to provide continu ing d isclosure services for the D istrict 

1 .0 PFMGC - Genera l  Scope of Proposal 

Consistent with Exh ib it A, Section IV of i1s existing D istrict Management Ag reement PFM wil l provide 

continu ing d isclosu re fi l ing coord ination and assistance for D istrict debt issuances on EMMA as 

requ i red by the MSRB and other regu latory agencies . 

2.0 Compensat ion 

Compensation for continu ing d isclosu re serv ices for the D istrict are summarized below and 
supersede the fees l isted in Exh ib it B of the Ag reement 

Existing issuances: $2,000 per bond issuance 
F utu re issuances: $2,500 in itial set up  fee and $2,000 for continued d issemination agent serv ice 
consistent with existing issuances. 

The fees above wi l l be paid in equa l  month ly instal lmen1s, with the exception of any i n itial set- up  fee 
wh ich wou ld be charged in full at the time of set up .  

Provided the terms above are acceptable, p lease have an authorized officia l o f  the D istrict sig n a copy 

of th is Engagement Letter and return it to us to acknowledge the terms of th is engagement 



0 Ho l ly  H i l l  Road East COD 
April 8, 2020 

Paqe 2 

D istrict Board of Superv isors 

Sig nature 

NarrE 

Tifle 

PF M Group Consu lting LLC 

Sig nature 

NaITE Stan Geberer 

Tifle Sen ior Managing Consu ltant 

We look forward to prov id ing our  contin ued serv ices to Holly H i l l  Road East COD .  

Sincerely , 

Stan Geberer , Sen ior Managing Consu ltant 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

GMS 



Dissemination Agent Proposal 
For 

Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Governmental Management Services - Central Florida, LLC proposes to act as 
Dissemination Agent ("Agent") for the Holly Hill Road East Community Development 
District ("District") .  Agent will provide such services as required by the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement(s) for current and future bond issues in accordance with Security 
and Exchange Commission' s Rule 1 5c2- 12(b)(5). The services are based upon the 
following fee structure : 

Compensation 

$3 ,500 First Bond Issue and $ 1 ,000 for each additional bond issue paid in equal monthly 
installments beginning October 1 ,  2020. 

Future Bond Issues (excluding refunding bond issues) : 
One Time Set Up Fee (Paid from Bond Proceeds) $2,500 Per Bond Issue 

Governmental Management Services-
Central Florida, LLC 

Holly Hill Road East CDD 

Authorized Officer Authorized Officer 

DateDate 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Proposal(s) for Playground Shade Structure 



For over a decade, our customers have entrusted us to provide safe and 

afforda ble p layground and recreationa l  equipment. Our team of Certified 

Genera l Contractors and P layground Safety Inspectors wi l l  insu re that your 

project is completed to perfection, p roviding tru ly tu rnkey service, with every 

step of the process from p lanning and budgeting, th rough the insta l lation 

being hand led under one roof. 

P lAYGROUNDS  
Th e Play & Recrea tion Experts 

1 -800-573-7529 I www.proplayg rounds.com 

www.proplaygrounds.com


--�\,,_ 

P ro P laygrounds Quote 
8490 Ca bin H i l l  Road 

Ta l lahassee, F L  3 2 3 1 1 
P LAY G R O U N D S  

Date Estimate # 
The Play & Recrea tion Experts 

Project Name 4/8/2020 8587 

Citrus Is le playg round Shade 

Customer / Bi l l  To Ship To 

Attn : Jane Gaarlandt Citrus Is les 
PMF Group Consulting LLC . 950 Davenport Blvd 
1 2051 Corporate Blvd Davenport, FL 33837 
Orlando FL  328 1 7  WE  W I L L  BEAT ANY P R I C E  B Y  5% !  

Item Description Qty Cost Total :  

Furnish labor and materials to : 
1 .  I nsta l l  1 x 30'x30'x1 O' h ip shade to go over 
existi ng playg round . 

**SHADE STRUCTURE** 
20-SD3030 1 0 IG . . .  SD3030 1 0 IG-1 05-30x30-SQUARE SHADE, FOUR 1 8 ,7 1 8 .00 8,7 1 8 .00T 

COLUMN-1 0' Height - I NGROUND  - WITH GL I DE
SQUARE - ENG . . .  

ENGDRAW Engi neered Drawings for Perm itti ng 1 720 .00 720 .00 
Shipping Combi ned Shipp ing and Freight Charges 6 1 0 .26 1 .20 732 .3 1  

**RAW MATERIALS** 
FBLOCK Footer Blocks 1 6  2 .00 32.00 
RBAR5 No. 5 Rebar 356 1 .75 623 .00 
RMC Ready Mix Concrete 2500 PSI M IN  1 0  1 95 .00 1 ,950.00 

**PERMITS, RENTALS & LABOR** 
ISPERMIT PERMIT - STATE OF FLORIDA - COST NOT 1 2,000 .00 2,000.00 

I NCLUDED IN PRICE, COST SHALL BE $2000 OR 
5% OF TOTAL PROJECT COST, WH ICHEVER IS 
GREATER. PRICE DOES NOT I NCLUDE COST 
OF ENG INEER ING OR SEALED DRAWINGS.  

TRSH Fees for dumpsters, debris hau l i ng or other 650 .00 650 .00 
trash/materials removal i nc lud i ng spoi ls from 
excavations. 

M INEXDAY Mini Excavator Dai ly Rental 577 .85 577 .85 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: Subtota l :  
If the above tota l price, sco pe of work, specifications, terms and cond itions are acce pta b le, 
sign below indicating you r acceptance and authorization for P ro Pi aygrounds to p roceed 
witll the work and/o r sa l es tra nsaction descri bed in this quotation. U pon signature and 
payment in accordance with this quote, Pro Playgrounds will proceed w ith the work and/or Sales Tax: (6.0%) 
sales transaction. 

I I 
Si gnature Name  / TIile Date Tota l :  

Terms and Condit ions - Price val id for 3 0  days and subject to change. 1 .  I f  i nstal lation i s  not inc l uded with you r purchase, cl ient wi l l  be responsib le for coord inat ing ,  
receiv ing and un load ing of a l l  goods, del ivery drivers wi l l  not he lp un load goods . 2 .  Cl ient wi l l  be responsib le to inspect goods for defect, damage or miss ing parts , 
any deficiency or miss ing parts must be noted on del ivery s l ip .  3. Cl ient wi l l  be responsib le for costs due to cancelled or m issed del ivery appointments. 4. Cl ient has 
reviewed a l l  items, colors and descri ptions on th is quote for accu racy and correctness . 5. If quote i nc ludes instal lation of goods, the instal lat ion is subject to the 
terms and cond it ions of Pro Playgrounds "Standard I nstal lat ion Agreement" a copy of which may be obta ined from your Sales Representative. 

1 -800-573-7529 www.p rop layg rounds.com 

Page 1 

www.proplaygrounds.com
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://1,950.00
https://8,718.00


--�\,,_ 

P ro P laygrounds Quote 
8490 Ca bin H i l l  Road 

Ta l lahassee, F L  3 2 3 1 1 
P LAY G R O U N D S  

Date Estimate # 
The Play & Recrea tion Experts 

Project Name 4/8/2020 8587 

Citrus Is le playg round Shade 

Customer / Bi l l  To Ship To 

Attn : Jane Gaarlandt Citrus Is les 
PMF Group Consulting LLC . 950 Davenport Blvd 
1 2051 Corporate Blvd Davenport, FL 33837 
Orlando FL  328 1 7  WE  W I L L  BEAT ANY P R I C E  B Y  5% !  

Item Description Qty Cost Total :  

FL I FTDAY Telescopic Fork Lift Dai ly Rental 1 1 ,308 . 1 0  1 ,308 . 1 0  
LBR Labor and I nstal lation 4 ,500 1 .49992 6 ,749 .66 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: Subtota l :  $24,060.92 If the above tota l price, sco pe of work, specifications, terms and cond itions are acce pta b le, 
sign below indicating you r acceptance and authorization for P ro Pi aygrounds to p roceed 
witll the work and/o r sa l es tra nsaction descri bed in this quotation. U pon signature and 
payment in accordance with this quote, Pro Playgrounds will proceed w ith the work and/or Sales Tax: (6.0%) $523 .08 
sales transaction. 

I I 
Si gnature Name  / TIile Date Tota l :  $24,584 .00 

Terms and Condit ions - Price va l i d  for 30 days and subject to change. 1 .  If i nstal lation is not  inc l uded with you r purchase, cl ient wi l l  be responsib le for coord inat ing ,  
receiv ing and un load ing of a l l  goods, del ivery drivers wi l l  not he lp un load goods . 2 .  Cl ient wi l l  be responsib le to inspect goods for defect, damage or miss ing parts , 
any deficiency or miss ing parts must be noted on del ivery s l ip .  3. Cl ient wi l l  be responsib le for costs due to cancelled or m issed del ivery appointments. 4. Cl ient has 
reviewed a l l  items, colors and descri ptions on th is quote for accu racy and correctness . 5. If quote i nc ludes instal lation of goods, the instal lat ion is subject to the 
terms and cond it ions of Pro Playgrounds "Standard I nstal lat ion Agreement" a copy of which may be obta ined from your Sales Representative. 

1 -800-573-7529 www.p rop layg rounds.com 

Page 2 

www.proplaygrounds.com
https://24,584.00
https://24,060.92
https://6,749.66
https://1,308.10
https://1,308.10


S Q U A R E  H I P  S H A D E  

30' X 30' X 8'  

M O D E L  # :  

SD303008 1G (With Gl ide Elbows) 
SD3030081 N (Without Gl ide Elbows) 

R E F".# PART D E S C R I PTI O N  
1 05.5" Capped Embedded Column 
2 Angled Elbow 
3 03.5" H ip Rafter w/ Swaged End 
4 03.5" Ridge Pole w/ Swaged Ends 
5 Square "Y" Connection 
6 Fabric Cover w/ Cable Insert 
7 Frame Hardware Kit 

----- 30'-0" Column Ct_ ------ �---- 30'-0" Column Ct_ ------1� 

1 3'- 1 0" 

8'-0" 
�TY. 

Grade Level 
4 
4 F"RC NT VI EW S I D E VI EW 
4 
1 
2 
1 
1 

-

! 
6" 

... ... 
3 .0' l

3 .0' 

Q Qe 9 

I REINF.  
1  3  4' SQ · ----l1--- · (4)#5 EW 

Top And Bottom 
F□ □T I N l3  D ETA I L 

*Footing design based 
on 1 500 PSF soil 
bearing pressure. 

T R I M ETR I C  VI EW 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Proposal(s) for Dog Park 

(provided under separate cover) 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Proposal(s) for Speed Limit Signs 

(provided under separate cover) 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Proposal(s) for Towing Services 

(provided under separate cover) 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Discussion Regarding Re-Opening of Amenity 
Facilities 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Payment Authorization No. 1 1 4-1 22 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 14 

3/13/2020 

Item 

No. 
Vendor Invoice 

Number 

General 

Fund 

1 Business Observer 

Legal Advertising on 03/06/2020 20-00424K $ 48. 1 3  

2 Duke Energy 

000 Davenport Blvd Lite ; Service 02/06/2020 - 03/09/2020 $ 768 .57 

3 Navitas 

Playground Lease $ 527.41 

4 The Ledger 

Legal Advertising on 02/1 0/2020 L060G0J5M2 $ 323. 1 7  

5 PFM Group Consulting 

OM Fee: March 2020 

Website Fee: March 2020 

DM-03-2020-0029 

DM-03-2020-0030 

$ 
$ 

1 ,666.67 

1 25 .00 

TOTAL $ 3,458.95 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East COD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

1 2051 Corporate Boulevard RECEIVED MAR 1 6 2020 
Orlando, FL 328 1 7  

https://3,458.95


HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 1 5  

3/20/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 City of Davenport 

Pool Meter I 127 Bergamot Loop ; Service 02/05/2020 - 03/04/2020 $ 33.18 

2 Complete Pool Care 

April Pool Service 13528 $ 1,525.00 

3 Duke Energy 

127 Bergamot Loop (Amenity Center) ; Service 02/18/2020 - 03/19/2020 $ 1,514.39 

4 Fuqua Janitorial Services 

March Clubhouse Cleaning 8058 $ 765.00 

5 Spectrum Business 

127 Bergamot Loop ; Service 03/11/2020 - 04/10/2020 85433101031220 $ 131.97 

TOTAL $ 3,969.54 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
1 2051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 RECEIVED MAR 3 0 2020 

https://3,969.54


HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 1 6  

3/27/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Creative Association Services 

February Landscaping - Amenity Walkway 

March Landscaping - Amenity Walkway 

June-December 201 9  Landscaping-Citrus Pointe 

January-March 2020 Landscaping-Citrus Pointe 

June-December 20 1 9  Landscaping-Citrus Pointe Amenity 

January-March 2020 Landscaping-Citrus Pointe Amenity 

2 Duke Energy 

290 Citrus Isle Loop Lift ; Service 02/1 9/2020 - 03/20/2020 

3 Hopping Green & Sams 

General Counsel Through 02/29/2020 

Boundary Amendment Through  02/29/2020 

4 Navitas 

Playground Lease 

6500 $ 500.00 

6501 $ 500.00 

651 2  YR201 9  $ 7,000.00 

651 2  YR2020 $ 3,000.00 

651 3  YR201  9 $ 7,000.00 

651 3  YR2020 $ 3,000. 00 

$ 52.75 

1 1  3638 $ 2,354 .00 

1 1 3639 $ 20.82 

$ 1 ,642. 78 

TOTAL $ 25,070.35 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 
Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
1 2051 Corporate Boulevard RECEIVED MAR 3 0 2020 
Orlando, FL 32817 

https://25,070.35


HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 1 7  
4/3/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Duke Energy 
00 Holly Hi l l  Rd ; Service 02/25/2020 - 03/26/2020 
256 Bergamot Loop Lift ; Service 02/27/2020 - 03/30/2020 

$ 
$ 

353.09 
30.64 

2 Orkin 

1 27 Bergamot Loop Pest Control 1 95585534 $ 48. 1 5  

3 Supervisor Fees - 03/1 8/2020 Meeting 
Rennie Heath 
Scott Shapiro 

Lauren Schwenk 
Patrick Marone 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

200.00 
200.00 
200.00 
200.00 

TOTAL $ 1 ,231 .88 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East CDD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

12051 Corporate Boulevard RFr,i:-IVEO APR 0 4 2020 
Orlando, FL 3281 7  



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 18 

4/1 0/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Carr Riggs & Ingram 

FY 201 9  Audit 1 6866973 $ 2,000.00 

2 Duke Energy 

000 Davenport Blvd Lite ; Service 03/09/2020 - 04/08/2020 $ 768.91 

TOTAL $ 2,768.91 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East CDD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

12051 Corporate Boulevard 

Orlando, FL 328 1 7  RECEIVED APR 1 3 2020 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 1 9  

4/1 7/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 A & R Contracting & Cleaning 

Top Rail Replacement 2635 $ 1 65.00 

2 City of Davenport 

Pool Meter / 1 27 Bergamot Loop ; Service 03/05/2020 - 04/04/2020 $ 33 .49 

3 Complete Pool Care 

May Pool Service 1 3579 $ 1 ,525.00 

4 Creative Association Services 

April Landscaping - Citrus Isle 
April Landscaping - Citrus Pointe Amenity 
April Landscaping - Citrus Pointe 
April Landscaping - Amenity Walkway 

6631 
6637 
6638 
6642 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1 , 1 66.00 
1 ,000.00 
1 ,000 .00 

500 .00 

5 Fuqua Janitorial Services 

April Clubhouse Cleaning 8088 $ 680.00 

6 Navitas 

Playground Lease $ 527.41 

7 Spectrum Business 

1 27 Bergamot Loop ; Service 04/1 1 /2020 - 05/1 0/2020 8543310 1041 220 $ 1 31 .97 

TOTAL $ 6,728.87 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East COD RECEIVED APR 2 2 2020 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 

1 2051 Corporate Boulevard 

Orlando, FL 32817 

https://6,728.87


HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T 

Payment Authorization No. 120 

4/24/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Duke Energy 

1 27 Bergamot Loop (Amenity Center) ; Service 03/1 9/2020 - 04/21/2020 
290 Citrus Isle Loop Lift ; Service 03/20/2020 - 04/22/2020 

$ 
$ 

1 ,61  1 .21 
47.21 

2 Hopping Green & Sams 

General Counsel Through 03/31/2020 1 14135 $ 1 ,955.26 

3 PFM Group Consulting 

OM Fee: April 2020 
Website Fee: April 2020 

DM-04-2020-0029 
DM-04-2020-0030 

$ 
$ 

1 ,666.67 
1 25.00 

TOTAL $ 5,405.35 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East COD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

12051 Corporate Boulevard 

Orlando, FL 32817  RECEIVED MAY 0 2 2020 

https://5,405.35


HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 121 

5/1 /2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Creative Association Services 

I rrigation Repairs 6658-CI $ 83.38 

2 Duke Energy 

00 Holly Hi ll Rd ; Service 03/26/2020 - 04/28/2020 
256 Bergamot Loop Lift ; Service 03/30/2020 - 04/30/2020 

$ 
$ 

353.27 
23.36 

3 Navitas 

Playground Lease $ 1 ,642.78 

4 Orkin 

1 27 Bergamot Loop Pest Control 1 96947 1 87 $ 48. 1 5  

TOTAL $ 2,1 50.94 

Board Member 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East CDD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

1 2051 Corporate Boulevard 

Orlando, FL 32817 
RECEIVED MAY 0 2 2020 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  

Payment Authorization No. 1 22 
5/8/2020 

Item 
No. 

Vendor Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 

1 Carr Riggs & Ingram 
FY 201  9 Audit 1 689902 1 $ 1 ,000.00 

2 Duke Energy 
102 Citrus Isle Loop Lite ; Service 04/03/2020 - 05/05/2020 $ 5.64 

TOTAL $ 1 ,005.64 

Please Return To: 

Holly Hill Road East CDD 

c/o Fishkind & Associates 

1 2051 Corporate Boulevard RECEIVED MAY 1 1 2020 
Orlando, FL 32817 

https://1,005.64


Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Monthly Financials 



Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

Statement of F inancia l  Position 

As of 3/3 1 /2020 

Total Current Assets $205,276 .9 1  $589, 921 . 2 1  $76,725.74 $0.00 $87 1 , 923.86 

Investments 

Amount Avai lable in Debt Service Funds $586,791 . 1 1  $586,79 1 . 1 1  

Amount To Be Provided 4,763,208.89 4,763,208.89 

Total I nvestments $0 .00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,350,000.00 $5,350,000.00 

Total Assets $205,276 .9 1  $589,92 1 . 2 1  $76,725.74 $5,350,000.00 $6,22 1 , 923.86 

Liabil ities and Net Assets 

Current Liabil ities 

Accounts Payable $31 , 070.89 $31 , 070.89 

Deferred Revenue 1 , 848.76 1 , 848.76 

Deferred Revenue $3, 1 30 . 1 0  3 , 1 30 . 1 0  

Accounts Payable $76,674.52 76,674.52 

Deferred Revenue 76,674 .50 76,674 .50 

Total Current Liabi l ities $32, 9 1  9.65 $3, 1 30 . 1 0  $1  53,349.02 $0.00 $1  89, 398.77 

Long Term Liabil ities 

Revenue Bonds Payable - Long-Term $5,350,000.00 $5,350,000.00 

Total Long Term Liabi l ities 

Total Liabil ities 

Net Assets 

Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Current Year Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Net Assets - General Government 

Current Year Net Assets - General Government 

Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Current Year Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Current Year Net Assets, U nrestricted 

Net Assets - General Government 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabil ities and Net Assets 

Current Assets 

General Checking Account 

Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Expenses 

Deposits 

Assessments Receivable 

Debt Service Reserve A 1 Bond 

Debt Service Reserve A2 Bond 

Revenue A 1 Bond 

Revenue A2 Bond 

l nterest A2 Bond 

Prepayment A 1 Bond 

Prepayment A2 Bond 

Redemption Account A 1 Bond 

Accounts Receivable - Due from Developer 

Acqu isition/Construction A2 Bond 

Debt Service 
General Fund 

Fund 

Assets 

$200,975. 1 5  

1 , 848.76 

1 ,293.00 

1 , 1 60 .00 

$3, 1 30 . 1 0  

1 1 4 , 878. 1 2  

63 ,371  . 88  

25 1 ,6 1  9 .90 

1 50 ,6 1  0 .84 

0 .09 

3 , 385.75 

2 ,742.74 

1 8 1  .79 

Capital Projects Long-Term 
Total 

Fund Debt 

$200 ,975. 1 5  

1 , 848.76 

1 ,293.00 

1 , 1 60 .00 

3 , 1 30 . 1 0  

1 1 4 , 878. 1 2  

63 ,371  . 88  

25 1 ,6 1  9 .90 

1 50 ,6 1  0 .84 

3 , 385.75 

2 ,742.74 

1 8 1  .79 

$76,674 .50 76,674 .50 

5 1  .24 51  .24 

$0 .00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,350,000.00 $5,350,000.00 

$32, 9 1  9.65 $3, 1 30 . 1 0  $1  53 ,349.02 $5,350,000.00 $5,539, 398.77 

$1  1 , 358.49 

(1  1 , 358. 50) 

54,896.60 

1 1  7,460.67 

$ 1 72,357.26 

$398, 9 1  7.86 

1 87 ,873.25 

$586,791  . 1  1 

$600,439.86 

(53,957.26) 

(623 , 1 05. 88) 

($76 ,623.28) $0.00 

$1  1 , 358.49 

(1 1 , 358. 50) 

54 , 896.60 

1 1  7,460.67 

398, 9 1  7.86 

1 87 ,873.25 

600,439.86 

(53 , 957.26) 

(623 , 1 05. 88) 

$682, 525.09 

$205,276 .9 1  $589,92 1  . 2 1  

Page 1 o f  1 

$76,725.74 $5,350,000.00 $6,22 1 , 923.86 

0 .09 

https://76,674.50
https://76,674.50
https://2,742.74
https://3,385.75
https://114,878.12
https://3,130.10
https://1,160.00
https://1,293.00
https://1,848.76
https://200,975.15
https://2,742.74
https://3,385.75
https://114,878.12
https://3,130.10
https://1,160.00
https://1,293.00
https://1,848.76
https://200,975.15
https://76,674.50
https://76,674.50
https://76,674.52
https://76,674.52
https://3,130.10
https://3,130.10
https://1,848.76
https://1,848.76
https://31,070.89
https://31,070.89
https://6,221,923.86
https://5,350,000.00
https://76,725.74
https://589,921.21
https://205,276.91
https://5,350,000.00
https://5,350,000.00
https://4,763,208.89
https://4,763,208.89
https://586,791.11
https://586,791.11
https://871,923.86
https://76,725.74
https://589,921.21
https://205,276.91


Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

Statement of Activities 

As of 3/3 1 /2020 

Debt Service Capital Projects Long-Term 
General Fund Total 

Fund Fund Debt 

Revenues 

On-Rol l  Assessments 

Off-Rol l  Assessments 

Other I ncome & Other F inancing Sou rces 

I nter-Fund Transfers I n  

On-Roll Assessments 

Developer Contributions 

I nter-Fund Transfers I n  

$21  1 , 808 .40 

42 ,695 .63 

1 2 ,298 .34 

(1  1 , 358 . 50) 

$350 , 3 1  5 .80  

$33 ,634 .50  

1 1  , 358 .50 

$21  1 , 808 .40 

42 ,695 .63 

1 2 ,298 .34 

( 1  1 , 358 . 50) 

350 , 3 1  5 .80  

33 ,634 .50 

1 1  , 358 .50 

Total Revenues $255,443.87 $350, 3 1  5 .80  $44 ,993 .00  $0 .00 $650,752.67 

Expenses 

Supervisor Fees $2 ,800 .00 $2 ,800 .00 

D&O Insurance 2 , 306 .00 2 , 306 .00 

Trustee Services 7 , 084.57 7 , 084 .57 

Management 1 0 , 000 .02 1 0 ,000 .02 

F ie ld Management 238 . 1 6  238 . 1 6  

Eng ineering 2 ,755 .00 2 ,755 .00 

Dissemination Agent 6 , 500 .00 6 ,500 .00  

District Counsel 1 1  , 579 .8 1  1 1  , 579 . 8 1  

Assessment Admin istration 1 2 , 500 .00 1 2 ,500 .00 

Travel and Per D iem 30 .48 30 .48 

Postage & Sh ipp ing 2 1 4 .39  2 1 4 .39  

Copies 55 .20 55 .20 

Lega l  Advertis ing 1 , 803 .56 1 , 803 .56 

M iscel laneous 985 .02 985 .02 

Leased Space 1 2 , 09 1  . 32 1 2 ,09 1  . 32 

Web Site Maintenance 750 .00 750 .00 

Dues ,  Licenses, and Fees 1 75 .00  1 75 .00  

Maintenance Staff 4 , 845 .00 4 , 845 .00 

Electric 7 ,68 1  . 39  7 ,68 1  . 39  

Amen ity - Landscape Maintenance 1 3 , 000 .00 1 3 ,000 .00 

Amen ity - Pest Control 288 .90 288 .90 

Cab le Television 629 . 8 1  629 . 8 1  

General  Insurance 2 , 958 .00 2 ,958 .00  

Property & Casualty 9 , 357 .00 9 , 357 .00 

I rrigation 1 8 1  .72 1 8 1 .72 

I rrigation Parts 2 , 966 .32 2 , 966 .32 

Landscaping Maintenance & Material 1 6 , 996 .00 1 6 ,996 .00 

Contingency 3 ,436 .20 3 ,436 .20 

Streetl ights 4 ,629 .27 4 ,629 .27 

Swimming Pools 1 0 , 827.40 1 0 , 827.40 

Pr inc ipa l  Payments $35 ,000 .00 35 ,000 .00 

I nterest Payments 1 29 ,622 . 5 1  1 29 ,622 . 5 1  

Eng ineering $ 1  9 ,400 .00 1 9 ,400 .00 

District Counsel 2 , 094 .75 2 , 094 .75 

Contingency 77 ,455 .77 77 ,455 .77 

Total Expenses $ 1 49 ,665 .54 $ 1 64,622 . 5 1  $98 ,950 .52 $0 .00 $4 1 3 ,238 .57 

Other Revenues {Expenses} & Gains {Losses} 

I nterest I ncome 

I nterest I ncome 

I nterest I ncome 

$323 . 84 

$2 , 1 79 .96 

$0 .26 

$323.84 

2 , 1  79 .96 

0 .26 

Total Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains (Losses) $323 . 84 $2, 1 79 .96 $0 .26 $0 .00 $2 ,504 . 06 

Change In Net Assets $ 1 06 , 1 02 . 1 7  $ 1  87 ,873 .25 ($53 ,957 .26) $0 .00 $240 , 0 1  8 . 1 6  

Net Assets At Beg inn ing  O f  Year $66 ,255 .09 $398 , 9 1  7 . 86 ($22 ,666. 02) $0 .00 $442 ,506 .93 

Net Assets At End Of Year $ 1 72 ,357 .26 $586,79 1 . 1 1  ($76 ,623 .28) $0 .00 $682 ,525 .09 

Page 1 of 1 

https://682,525.09
https://76,623.28
https://586,791.11
https://172,357.26


(7,356.09) 

Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

Budget to Actua l  
For  the Month End ing  03/3 1 /2020 

Actual 

Year To Date 

Budget Variance 
FY 2020 
Adopted 
Budget 

Revenues 
On-Rol l  Assessments 
Off-Rol l  Assessments 
Other I ncome & Other F inancing Sou rces 
I nter-Governmental Revenue (North B lvd CDD) 

$ 2 1  1 ,808.40 
42,695.63 

40.00 
1 2 ,258 .34 

$ 1 06 ,827 .96 
28 ,464 .03 

1 9 ,264 .74 

$ 1 04 ,980.44 
1 4 ,231  .60 

40 .00 
(7 ,006.40) 

$ 2 1  3,655 .9 1  
56 ,928 .06 

38 ,529.48 

Net Revenues $ 266,802.37 $ 1 54,556.73 $ 1 1  2,245.64 $ 309, 1  1 3.45 

General & Admin istrative Ex�enses 
Supervisor Fees $ 2 , 800 .00 $ 6 ,000 .00 $ (3 ,200. 00) $ 1 2 ,000.00 
D&O Insurance 2 , 306.00 1 ,237.50 1 , 068 .50 2 ,475 .00 
Trustee Services 7 ,084 .57 3 ,000 .00 4 ,084.57 6 ,000 .00 
Management 1 0 ,000 .02 1 0 ,000.00 0 .02 20 ,000 .00 
Field Management 238. 1 6  2 , 500 .00 (2 ,26 1  . 84) 5 ,000 .00 
Eng ineering 2 , 755 .00 7 ,500 .00 (4 ,745. 00) 1 5 ,000.00 
Dissemination Agent 6 ,500 .00 2 , 500 .00 4 ,000 .00 5 ,000 .00 
District Counsel 1 1  ,579 .8 1  1 0 ,000.00 1 , 579 .8 1  20 ,000 .00 
Assessment Admin istrat ion 1 2 ,500.00 6 ,250.00 6 ,250.00 1 2 ,500.00 
Reamortization Schedu les 250.00 (250. 00) 500.00 
Audit  3 , 000 .00 (3 ,000. 00) 6 ,000 .00 
Travel and Per Diem 30.48 250.00 (2 1 9 . 52) 500.00 
Telephone 1 00 .00 ( 1  00. 00) 200.00 
Postage & Sh ipp ing 2 1 4 .39 1 62 . 50 5 1  .89 325.00 
Copies 55.20 850.00 (794 . 80) 1 , 700.00 
Legal  Advertis ing 1 , 803.56 2 , 500 .00 (696 .44) 5 ,000 .00 
M iscel laneous 985.02 9 ,558 .30 (8 ,573.28) 1 9 , 1  1 6 .60 
Property Taxes 37 .50 (37. 50) 75 .00 
Web S ite Ma intenance 750.00 1 , 350.00 (600 . 00) 2 , 700 .00 
Dues, L icenses, and Fees 1 75 .00 87 .50 87 .50 1 75 .00 

Total General  & Admin istrative Expenses $ 59,777.21 $ 67,1 33.30 $ $ 1 34,266.60 

Page 1 of 2 

https://134,266.60
https://67,133.30
https://59,777.21


Hol ly H i l l  Road East CDD 

Budget to Actua l  
For  the Month End ing  03/3 1 /2020 

Year To Date 
FY 2020 

Actual Budget Variance Adopted 
Budget 

Field Expenses 
Genera l  I nsurance (Phase 1 )  $ 2 , 958 .00 $ 1 , 5 1 2 .50  $ 1 ,445 .50 $ 3 ,025 .00 
Genera l  I nsurance (Phase 2)  741  .42 (74 1  .42) 1 ,482 .84 
I rr igation (Phase 1 )  1 8 1 .72 350.00 ( 1  68.28) 700.00 
I rr igation (Phase 2) 1 7 1 .57 ( 1  7 1  . 57) 343 . 1 4  
I rr igation Repai rs (Phase 1 )  2 , 966.32 1 ,200.00 1 , 766.32 2 ,400.00 
I rr igation Repai rs (Phase 2) 588.24 (588.24) 1 , 1 76 .47 
Landscaping Maintenance & Material (Phase 1 )  6 ,996.00 8 , 1  96.00 ( 1  ,200 . 00) 1 6 ,392.00 
Landscaping Maintenance & Material (Phase 2) 1 0 ,000.00 6 ,000 .00 4 ,000 .00 1 2 ,000.00 
Flower & Plant Replacement (Phase 1 )  2 , 750 .00 (2 ,750. 00) 5 ,500 .00 
Flower & Plant Replacement (Phase 2) 1 , 348 . 04 ( 1  , 348 .04) 2 ,696.08 
Fert i l izer  / Pesticides (Phase 1 )  1 ,250 .00 ( 1  ,250 . 00) 2 , 500 .00 
Fert i l izer  / Pesticides (Phase 2) 6 1 2 . 75 (6 1 2 . 75) 1 ,225.49 
Cont ingency (Phase 1 )  3 ,436.20 2 , 7 1  8 .00 7 1  8 .20 5 ,436.00 
Cont ingency (Phase 2) 1 , 332 .35 ( 1  ,332 . 35) 2 ,664 .7 1  
Storm Damage 1 ,500.00 ( 1  ,500 . 00) 3 ,000 .00 
Street l ig hts (Phase 1 )  4 ,629 .27 4 ,500 .00 1 29 .27 9 ,000 .00 
Street l ig hts (Phase 2) 2 ,205.88 (2 ,205. 88) 4 ,4 1  1 .76 

Total Field Expenses $ 31  , 1 67.51 $ 36,976.75 $ (5,809.24) $ 73,953.49 

Cabana & Pool Expenses 
Secu rity $ $ 3 ,500 .00 $ (3 ,500. 00) $ 7 ,000 .00 
Maintenance Staff 4 ,845 .00 2 , 1  87.50 2 ,657 .50 4 ,375 .00 
E lectric 7 ,68 1  .39 1 2 ,500.00 (4 ,8 1 8 .6 1 ) 25 ,000 .00 
Amen ity Landscaping 1 3 ,000.00 6 ,000 .00 7 ,000 .00 1 2 ,000.00 
Cable Televis ion 629 .8 1  262 .50 367. 3 1  525.00 
Property & Casua lty 9 ,357 .00 3 , 1 64.00 6 , 1  93.00 6 ,328 .00 
Equ ipment Repair  & Maintenance 1 ,02 1 . 00 ( 1  , 021  . 00) 2 , 042 .00 
Pest Control 288.90 330.00 (4 1 . 1 0) 660.00 
S ignage & Amen ities Repa i r  375.00 (375. 00) 750.00 
Swimming Pools Ma intenance 1 0 ,827.40 1 1  ,500 .00 (672 .60) 23 ,000 .00 
Playg round Lease 1 2 ,091  . 32 9 ,856.68 2 ,234.64 1 9 , 7 1  3 .36 

Total Cabana & Pool Expenses $ 58,720.82 $ 50,696.68 $ 8,024.1 4 $ 1 01 ,393.36 

Total Expenses $ 1 49 665.54 
1 $ 1 54 806.73

1 $ (5 141  . 1 9} 
1 $ 309 61 3.45 

1

Other Revenues {Expenses} & Gains {Losses} 
I nterest I ncome $ 323.84 $ 250.00 $ 73 .84 $ 500.00 

Total Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains $ 323.84 $ 250.00 $ 73.84 $ 500.00 
(Losses) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 1 1  7,460.67 $ $ 1 1  7,460.67 $ 

Page 2 of 2 



Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Staff Reports 


	Agenda Letter
	Executive Order 20-69
	Minutes 
	Letter from Supervisor of Election
	Financing Matters
	Supplemental Assessment Report
	Resolution 2020-10
	Supplemental Assessment Report
	Resolution 2020-11
	US Bank Truestee Proposal
	Other Matters
	Resolution 2020-12
	Proposals for Dissemination Services
	PFM
	GMS
	Proposal(s) for Playground Shade Structure
	Proposal(s) for Dog Park
	Proposal(s) for Speed Limit Signs
	Proposal(s) for Towning Services
	Discussion Regarding Re-Opening of Amenity Facilities
	Payment Authorization No. 114-122
	Monthly Financials
	Staff Reports



